

NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE FEDERATION OF TEACHERS



Affiliated with New York State United Teachers,
AFT, AFL-CIO and NEA

CONTRACT
September 1, 2013
to
August 31, 2017

NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Building F – Room 3293 Garden City, New York 11530-6793

PHONE: (516) 572-7198 FAX: (516) 572-7342 E-Mail: NCCFT@NCC.EDU WEB Address: www.nccft.org

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	SECTION	PAGE
Certification of Representation and Order to Negotiate		1
Preamble		3
The Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers	1	3
Agency Fee	2	4
Definitions	3	5
Work Year	4	6
Work Week	5	8
Work Day	6	13
LINCC Lecturer & LINCC Coordinator Work		
Year/Work Week/Work Day	7	15
Early A.M. Classes and Assignments	8	15
Distance Learning	9	16
Weekend College	10	18
Outside Activities and Part-Time Employment	11	19
Student Faculty Ratio	12	19
Equal Employment Policy	13	20
Administrators Teaching	14	20
Faculty Files	15	20
Academic Freedom	16	22
College-Wide Meetings	17	22
Evaluation of Professional Competence	18	22
Grievance Procedure	19	25
Academic Senate	20	28
Academic Department Chairpersons	21	29
Assistant to Chair	22	34
Wage Increase	23	35
Sick Leave	24	37
Supplemental Sick Leave	25	38
Catastrophic Leave	26	38
Verification of Illness	27	38
Sabbatical Leave	28	40
Personal Leave/Classroom Faculty	29	41
Professional and Military Leaves	30	42
Parental Leave	31	42
College Business	32	43
Holidays	33	43
Vacations – Non-Classroom and Professional Faculty	34	44
Jury Duty	35	44
Health Insurance	36	44
Optical Plan	37	47
Dental Plan	38	47
Life and Disability Insurance	39	48
Death Benefit	40	48

	SECTION	PAGE
Accidental Injury Death Benefit	41	48
Mileage Allowance	42	48
Academic Regalia	43	49
Termination Pay	44	49
Retirement Plans	45	50
Early Retirement Incentive	46	50
Special Retirement Incentive Terminating	47	5 1
December 31, 2015	47	51
Discontinuance of Service	48	52 53
Termination for Financial Reasons	49 50	52 53
Appointment Policy-Faculty and Administration	50 51	53 57
Reappointment and Non-Reappointment Progressive Disciplinary Process	52	57 58
Dismissal of Tenured Faculty	53	61
Temporary Appointments	54	65
Tenure Policy	55	65
Academic Departments Creation/ Merger/Splits	56	67
Promotion Policy-Instructional Faculty	57	67
Promotion Allocations	58	68
Promotion Policy-Professional Faculty	59	68
Qualifications for Appointment	37	00
and Promotion-Professional Faculty	60	71
Qualifications for Appointment, Promotion,	00	, 1
And Reclassification-Technologist	61	71
Promotion and Tenure Committee	62	71
Personnel and Budget Committees	63	73
LINCC Advisory Committee	64	75
Faculty Development	65	75
Professional Faculty Unit	66	76
Sabbatical Leave Committee	67	76
Budget Committee	68	77
Election of Committees	69	77
Management Rights	70	77
No Strike Provision	71	77
Table of Organization	72	78
Printing of Agreements	73	78
New Employees	74	78
Legality Clause	75	78
Civil Service Law 204a	76	78
VOTE/COPE Payroll Deduction	77	79
Duration of Contract	78	79
Appendix 1, Salaries for Faculty with Academic Rank		80
Appendix 1, Salaries for Faculty on P Grades		84
Appendix I, Salaries for Faculty on T Grades		88
Appendix 2, Computation of Sick Leave		92
Appendix 3, NCCFT Enrollment Forms		93

	SECTION	PAGE
Appendix 4, Grievance Report		94
Appendix 5, Policies & Procedures for Assignment and		
Evaluation of Faculty		95
Appendix 6, Technical Assistant(s) Conversion		96
Appendix 7, VOTE/COPE Authorization Form		98
Appendix 8, Student Advisement		99
Appendix 9, Clinical Instructor		100
Appendix 10, LINCC Lecturer		103
Index		106

CERTIFICATION OF REPRESENTATION AND ORDER TO NEGOTIATE

The Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers, formerly the Faculty Senate of Nassau Community College, having petitioned this Board for recognition and certification as the duly authorized employee organization to represent the public employees of the County of Nassau, in the unit hereinafter set forth, for the purpose of negotiating collectively on behalf of such employees with the County of Nassau, and Nassau Community College, as the public employer, in the determination of their terms and conditions of employment and the administration of grievances arising thereunder, and,

The Board, upon due consideration of such petition as well as all of the facts and evidence submitted in the course of a full hearing, conducted pursuant to Section VIII of the Rules of Procedure of this Board, and the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Officer made in connection therewith

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE FEDERATION OF TEACHERS, formerly the Faculty Senate of Nassau Community College, has been designated and selected by a majority of the employees of the above named public employer, in the unit specifically described below, as their representative for the purpose of collective negotiations and the settlement of grievances: (order effective 10/5/72 and as amended) UNIT

All faculty /staff /personnel in the following categories:

Professor

Associate Professor

Assistant Professor

Instructor

Assistant to the Dean

TV Radio Producer Director

TV Radio Engineer

Technical Assistant I, II, III, IV

Administrative Assistant I, II, III, IV

Technologist I, II, III

Clinical Instructor

Associate Registrar

Assistant Registrar

Associate Director of Admissions

Assistant Director of Admissions

Administrative Assistant/Admissions
Counselor-Admissions/Registrar
Coordinating Counselor Admissions/Registrar
Coordinator Developmental Programs
Coordinator of Testing
Assistant Director Academic Advisement
Intramural Sports Director and Coordinator of
Well-being Recreation Programs
System Technology Specialist
LINCC Lecturer I, II

Director of Special Programs:

Computer Systems Operations Student Finance Grants Academic Advisement

The following job titles are specifically excluded from said unit on the basis of their status as managerial and/or confidential:

President
Executive Vice President
Assistant to President
Vice President
Dean
Associate Vice President
Assistant Vice President
College Comptroller
Personnel Officer
Director- MIS
Associate Dean
Assistant Dean
Director of Admissions

Director of Special Programs:

Administrative Services Public Relations Procurement Fiscal Planning Physical Ed. Complex

PREAMBLE

The County of Nassau, through the Nassau Community College, is engaged in furnishing vitally important educational services to the public. This agreement seeks to assure the orderly and uninterrupted operations of the College by maintaining a harmonious relationship between the County and the College community.

Therefore, the County of Nassau, Nassau Community College, and the Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations herein assumed, enter into this agreement on this 22nd day of April, 2014.

SECTION I THE NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE FEDERATION OF TEACHERS

- The Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers has been duly certified as the representative of the negotiating unit by an order of PERB dated November 1968, as amended, as the exclusive and unchallenged negotiating representative for collective negotiations with respect to rates of pay, salaries, hours, grievances and other terms and conditions of employment for all of its employees in the negotiating unit for the period of this agreement. During the period of this agreement, the County of Nassau and Nassau Community College agree not to negotiate with or recognize any other organization representing or claiming to represent employees within the employer-employee negotiating unit, as defined by Nassau County PERB.
- 1-2 No bargaining unit member may be reclassified or transferred to a position not included within the titles and classifications certified by the Nassau County PERB without his/her knowledge and written consent.
- 1-3 No non-unit person, except as provided herein, may assume any job assigned to the bargaining unit without the permission of the Union.
- The Union shall be notified 15 days in advance of the assignment of all faculty released time projects. Notification shall include the nature of the assignment as well as the beginning and ending dates of the assignment.
- 1-5 The Union shall be provided with an office, intra-college phone service, and unrestricted intra-college mail service.
- 1-6 The Union shall be granted 75 hours of released time in each academic year. Eighteen days released time to be assigned at the discretion of the President of the Union.
- 1-6.1 The names of such designees shall be supplied in writing to the President, no later than one month preceding the beginning of

- the semester for which released time is sought.
- 1-7 The Union shall have the right to schedule Union meetings and conduct official union functions on campus. It is understood that Union members shall not attend such meetings nor participate in such union functions during their regular work schedule.
- 1-8 The President of Nassau Community College or his/her designated representative shall meet with the Executive Committee of the Union or their designated representative on matters of mutual interest at such times as is mutually agreeable.
- The County agrees to deduct from the salaries of the members of the bargaining unit dues for the Union and transmit the monies, together with a report of deductions, to the Treasurer of the Union. However, no dues deduction shall be made until the Union has provided the County with a dues authorization signed by the employee on the form attached hereto and made part hereof as Appendix 3. The Union shall certify to the County, in writing, the current rate of its membership dues. Checkoff shall take effect fifteen days after receipt of same by the Nassau County Comptroller. The County agrees that it will not accord dues deduction or similar check off right to any other organization representing or purporting to represent employees in the negotiating unit, as defined by PERB.
- The County and College agree to make available payroll deductions for tax deferred annuities with the following insurers: TIAA/CREF, Equitable Life, Travelers, Prudential, Metropolitan Life, Connecticut Mutual, Aetna, John Hancock, Paul Revere or Mutual of New York, or any other insurers subsequently approved under Section 399 of the State Education Law.

SECTION 2 AGENCY FEE

- Every member of the bargaining unit who is not a member of the Federation shall, within 30 days after the initial date of employment or within 30 days after this section becomes effective, whichever is later, pay to the Federation an agency fee. Such fee shall be equal to 100% of the membership dues of the Federation.
- 2-2 The Federation shall forward to the fiscal or disbursing officer of the College a list of non-members and the sum of money to be deducted from each faculty member's paycheck for the agency shop fee.
- 2-3 Said full amount shall be deducted from each faculty member's paycheck not later than 30 days of receipt of a list of non-members. The fiscal or disbursing officer shall forward said total amount of agency shop fee to the Federation.
- 2-4 The Federation shall be solely responsible to account to the

employees required to make such contributions for the receipt and disbursement of all funds collected pursuant to this paragraph and shall indemnify and hold the County harmless against all loss and liability, including, without limitation, all costs of defense on account of any claim asserted by an employee relating to the collection, disbursement or purposes for which such funds may or shall be used.

- Whenever the County shall be named as a party to any action, proceeding or claim which is subject to the indemnification provision of this paragraph, nothing herein contained shall abolish, limit or reduce the authority or responsibility of the County Attorney to appear and participate therein.
- That pursuant to and in compliance with Section 208, Subdivision 3 of the Civil Service Law of the State of New York, the Federation has adopted by means of an addition to its by-laws an agency fee refund policy. A copy of that current refund policy as set forth in the Federation by-laws is available in the Union Office. Notice of such by-law refund procedure shall be provided to non-members of the Federation by mailing, conspicuous posting or other appropriate means. The Federation further agrees during the term of this agreement to maintain an agency fee refund policy in full compliance with the above referenced statute. Any change in the agency fee refund policy, as available in the Union office, during the term of this agreement shall be done on notice to the "COLLEGE" and the Comptroller's Office of the County of Nassau.

SECTION 3 DEFINITIONS

- 3-1 **Union -** means the Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers, Local 3150.
- **Faculty* -** means an individual who is in the negotiating unit established by the Nassau County PERB and represented by the NCC Federation of Teachers.

Instructional Faculty - means both classroom and nonclassroom faculty holding academic rank Professor, Associate Professor, Assistant Professor or Instructor.

LINCC Lecturer – means all faculty teaching in the English Language Immersion program as Lecturers. The sections of this Agreement that are applicable to LINCC Lecturers are listed in Appendix 11 of this Agreement.

Professional Faculty - means all faculty without formal academic rank.

Technologist - means a professional faculty member holding a certificate from a professional organization or having work duties requiring a high degree of technological or computer skill.

- **Administration*** means all other full-time professional employees of the College.
- 3-4 **Semester** shall be as defined by the State University of New York, but shall in no event exceed fifteen (15) weeks of classroom instruction inclusive of examinations and registration. Semester shall be referred to as the "Fall" or "Spring" semester.
- 3-5 **County** means the County of Nassau.
- Grievance means any complaint or dispute between parties hereto and agents of the parties or any faculty member or group of faculty members based on any event or condition affecting their terms and conditions of employment or the meaning, interpretation or application of this agreement. It shall not include matters relative to faculty members which are reviewable under the by-laws of the Academic Senate.
- 3-7 **PERB** means the Public Employment Relations Board.
- 3-8 **Contact Hour** means fifty (50) minutes of actual classroom instruction.
- 3-9 **Seniority** Seniority commences from the date of the first appointment to a full-time departmental academic position (classroom or non-classroom) or a professional title within an academic department or a professional title in the professional faculty unit except as otherwise provided by contract. Seniority is not transferable to a new department or job category.
- 3-10 **Professional Appointment -** means probationary tenure track position.
 - *The definitions of Faculty and Administration are for the sole purpose of this document.

SECTION 4 WORK YEAR

- 4-1 Classroom Faculty
- 4-1.1 Classroom faculty appointments are normally for one (1) academic year, not exceeding two (2) regular semesters. In no case, however, is the actual year to exceed ten (10) months.
- 4-1.2 Each classroom faculty member, except new appointments, shall normally know his/her class schedule one month prior to the first day of classes of the new semester, but in no event less than two weeks before the first day of classes, except for class assignment changes approved by the Departmental Personnel & Budget Committee.
- 4-1.3 Classroom faculty members are not normally required to be on campus prior to September 1.
- 4-1.4 **Student Advisement-** The duties and responsibilities of classroom faculty members shall include student academic advisement for registration during the Fall and Spring semesters. When appropriate, faculty members may register students during

- advisement; however they are encouraged but not required to do so.
- a) NCC Faculty of Departments listed in Appendix 8, if interested, may submit applications to the VP for Academic Affairs regarding a one (1) year commitment (fall, spring) with three (3) contact hours of reassigned time per semester to participate in six (6) hours per week of assignment to the Student Advisement Center when classes are in session. This selection process is non-grievable. These faculty would, in addition, act as advisement liaisons for their respective Departments. In the event a Department does not have an internal representative, a member of the Advisement Center staff shall consult with the Department Chair and P&B to enhance the advisement process. The application deadline shall be March 1. Those faculty selected shall be notified by April 1. Those faculty selected will be offered promotion and tenure credit.
- b) All classroom faculty from those academic departments not stipulated in Appendix 8 shall fulfill their academic advisement responsibilities within their own departments during each Fall and Spring semester.
- c) Advisement: May, August, January
 All Departments: All faculty will commit to two (2) four-hour time blocks and be available, if necessary, during either the May or August or January advisement process at their Department's discretion.
- 4-1.5 **Scheduling of Classes -** Using established scheduling procedures, the College may start any class at any time during a semester, but all classes shall conclude at the end of the semester in which they start.
- 4-2 Non-classroom and Professional Faculty
- 4-2.1 The work year for non-classroom and professional faculty shall be from September 1 to the following August 31.
- 4-2.2 Non-classroom and professional faculty may be granted a leave of absence without pay between the dates June 1 and the next occurring Labor Day in any year, upon application to the appropriate supervising administrator, with the approval of the President. During such periods of leave, said employees shall receive no pay from the County of Nassau or the College, but the County shall continue to pay health and dental insurance benefits for each such employee during such periods of leave. This leave shall not be considered as an interruption of otherwise consecutive service.
- 4-3 All Faculty
- 4-3.1 **Meetings -** Academic responsibilities of the faculty to the College and the department shall include attendance at necessary and regularly scheduled College and departmental meetings

- during the semester.
- 4-3.2 **Attendance at Commencement** Attendance at commencement exercises and other College sponsored functions is not mandatory. However, at least 66% of the faculty of each department are expected to be in attendance. Faculty attending functions at Nassau Community College for which academic attire is required shall have the cost of said academic attire furnished by the College as stipulated in the contract.
- Reduced Work Load With the approval of the P&B Committee and the College Administration, faculty with five years of continuous service at the College may elect from 50% to 60% workload with proportionate reduction in pay, for one year at a time. This election may be for a Fall/Spring sequence and/or a Spring/Fall sequence. This election may not be made for two consecutive years. Additionally, a faculty member may elect (with the approval of the P&B Committee and the College Administration) the half workload option for one (1) semester. This reduction in workload will not affect any benefits the faculty member is entitled to as a full-time employee.

SECTION 5 WORK WEEK

- 5-1 Classroom Faculty
- 5-1.1 **Regular Contact Hours** Each classroom faculty member shall be assigned a teaching schedule each regular semester made up of 15 or 16 contact hours each week, with the exception of faculty in the Music Department assigned to individual (one to one) instrumental instruction. For that purpose, 75 minutes of instruction shall be counted as a 50-minute contact hour. No classroom faculty member, however, will be required to teach more than an average of 15 contact hours per week during any one school year.
- 5-1.2 **12 Hour Work Load** Provided that notice in writing is given to the appropriate department Chairperson or, in the event there is no Chairperson and there is no acting Chairperson, then to the Academic Vice President, at least two months prior to the commencement of the school semester, up to 45 members of the classroom faculty may elect to teach only 12 contact hours that semester. The salary of each member of the classroom faculty electing to teach only 12 contact hours shall be reduced by a sum equal to seven and one-half percent (7.5%) of their annual salary then in effect for each semester in which such an election is made. If more than 45 members of the classroom faculty elect in writing to teach only 12 contact hours, then, and in that event only, an order of priority will be developed by the Union and the College Administration under which only 45 members of the

classroom faculty in any one semester will be allowed to work a 12 contact hour schedule. The election to teach 12 contact hours above referred to may not be made by classroom faculty in departments which would be rendered incapable of operation by said election or where such election would cause the violation of any contract with the federal or state governments.

- 5-1.3 The College may employ either full-time or part-time instructors to teach classes made available by reduced teaching assignments as provided above. A department's total offerings shall not be reduced because of the election to teach only 12 contact hour programs by its members.
- Members of the English Department shall be deemed to be teaching 15 hours if they teach in accordance with the Fall semester 1971-72 Academic Year Program, which included three seminar hours. In no event, except as provided in the half-time option, will teaching faculty in the English Department be allowed to teach less than 12 contact hours of classroom instruction.

Effective September 1, 2015, each faculty member of the English Department shall be assigned by the English Department Personnel and Budget Committee up to three hours of the following, in order to fulfill their seminar hours obligations under this section:

- Tutoring students in reading and/or writing
- Academic advisement for liberal arts students
- Mentoring of liberal arts students
- Serving as a conversational partner for LINCC students

5-1.5 Office Hours – Classroom Faculty

- a) In addition to the classroom hours, each classroom faculty member will be required to post two and one half (2 1/2) office hours per week. (At least one (1) hour must be scheduled in a block; the remainder in periods of no less than 30 minutes.)
- b) Faculty shall reschedule missed office hours within a reasonable period of time, except when they are charged sick leave. It is recognized that office hours require the physical presence of the faculty member and e-mail may not be used as a substitute for the office hour requirement. Classroom faculty will also schedule an average of five (5) hours per week to satisfy their academic responsibilities to the College and the department.
- Room assignments and departmental time schedules will be assigned equitably to all departments by the appropriate Dean. Within the individual departments, courses will be assigned by the Department Chairperson with the Personnel & Budget Committee or other designated elected department committee. These courses will be assigned to qualified personnel on the basis of seniority or any other method agreed to by the members

- of the department.
- All off-campus and other course assignments, and credit courses taught via radio, television, or distance learning, shall be offered at the initiation of the department with approval of the Administration or at the initiation of the Administration as per normal scheduling practices in accordance with the terms and conditions of the NCCFT contract and the policies of the Academic Senate.
- 5-1.7.1 In addition, the following shall apply:
- a) An off-campus course or a course taught via radio, television, or distance learning, shall be defined as any credit course normally offered as part of the college curriculum but which is taught at a location other than the College campus, or by radio, television, or distance learning. An off-campus course, or a radio, television, or distance learning course may be considered as part of the regular course load of the faculty member.
- b) Faculty may be assigned to teach these courses as part of their regular course load on a strictly voluntary basis.
- c) Should an off-campus course, or a radio, television or distance learning course fail to develop after assignment, as part of a regular schedule, the faculty member shall have three (3) regular semesters to teach an extra course or courses in order to make up the deficit. Should it become necessary or with the concurrence of the appropriate Dean, this assignment may be fulfilled during the evening or summer sessions.
- d) On-campus office and advisement hours may be reduced proportionately for faculty teaching off-campus courses or radio, television, or distance learning courses so that faculty may schedule conferences for their off-campus students. This adjustment must be approved by the appropriate Dean.
- e) On-campus schedules for faculty who also teach off-campus courses, radio, television, or distance learning courses, may be reduced to three (3) days with the approval of the appropriate Dean, but in no case shall a faculty member's on and off-campus schedule exceed four (4) days.
- f) The mileage provision of the NCCFT contract shall apply for all off-campus teaching.
- 5-1.8 Teaching schedules will be assigned by the appropriate committee and chairperson in each department. The number of different instructional preparations each semester shall be kept to a minimum and shall not normally exceed three (3). Wherever possible, such schedules shall provide for a compact work week of no more than four (4) days, except on application of the individual faculty member to the Executive Committee of the Union and to the departmental Personnel & Budget Committee. A teaching schedule of less than four (4) days must have the

- approval of the appropriate Dean. Final schedules will be filed in the office of the appropriate Dean.
- 5-1.9 Whenever possible, time will be provided to classroom faculty in the normal work week for professional development. Classroom faculty would not, however, be excused from any formal commitment to the College. However, in the absence of any formal commitment, they would be free to pursue activities that would advance the College's and their academic growth, which activities shall not include teaching full-time at any other college or university.
- Advanced Standing/Nursing It is understood that teaching faculty in the Department of Nursing can serve on a voluntary basis as Advanced Standing Evaluators during the Fall and Spring semesters within the normal work day and work week. Such service will be during hours outside their normal teaching and/or office hours. In addition, with the approval of the Chairperson, Technical Assistants may serve as Advanced Standing Evaluators. Such service will be during hours outside their normal work schedules.
- 5-1.10-1 During the Fall/Spring semesters such service shall not exceed eight (8) hours per week. During other periods, such service shall not exceed sixteen (16) hours per week. The rate of pay for such services shall be \$60.00 per hour.
- 5-1.11 **Evening Observations -** If the College requests full-time faculty to evaluate evening faculty, they shall be paid \$60.00 per evaluation.
- Program Coordinators When the College Administration deems it necessary for faculty members, as part of their assigned duties, to coordinate academic programs during the summer and/or beyond their normal work day, they shall be compensated at the rate of 1.67% per contact hour of the faculty member's full time academic rank at their current step. This compensation shall be included in the faculty member's annual maximum total of 18 contact hours and shall be at least 3 contact hours in any one semester. (Summer = 1 semester) All such assignments (summer and/or beyond the normal work day) shall be voluntary.
- Independent Study Any faculty member wishing to teach an independent study/tutorial shall make such a request to the Department P&B Committee. If approved by the P&B Committee, the Chair shall forward this recommendation to the appropriate Dean for approval and assignment. For each student enrolled in a three credit Independent Study/Tutorial, the faculty member's compensation will be at 1.67% per contact hour of the individual's full-time academic rank at Step 1. A faculty member can teach a maximum of three contact hours of

Independent Study/Tutorial in an academic year, September to June

- 5-2 Non-classroom and Professional Faculty
- 5-2.1 Non-classroom and professional faculty shall work 33-3/4 hours per week within a schedule to be developed in accordance with contract provisions.
- 5-2.2 **All Purpose Leave** Non-classroom and professional faculty will receive fifteen days per year of All Purpose Leave to be used as follows:
 - a. Self-directed professional development;
 - b. Traditional personal leave purposes; and
 - c. General leave.

Prior approval shall be required by means of the existing leave request form, except that five of the fifteen All Purpose Leave days may be used for traditional personal leave purposes without prior approval. None of these days may be carried over from year to year. In those cases where faculty attend professional meetings at the request of the College Administration or as a result of a subpoena issued in a court proceeding or by an agency created by the government or the courts in a suit against the College by a third party, no leave time will be charged.

- Emergency Days Non-classroom and professional faculty will receive up to five additional days to be used in the event the President of the College cancels classes or declares an emergency for weather or other reasons. Effective September 1, 2014, the maximum amount of emergency days that may be utilized by non-classroom and professional faculty shall be seven (7) days.
- Bereavement All unit members shall be entitled to two (2) days of leave without loss of pay for death in the immediate family. Immediate family is defined as spouse, child, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother, sister, grandmother, grandfather and recognized domestic partner as defined by NYSHIP rules. Said leave shall not be chargeable to any other leave time.
- Work Schedule The normal work week for the non-classroom and professional faculty is 33-3/4 hours in five 6-3/4 hour days, Monday through Friday, commencing no earlier than 8:00 am and terminating no later than 5:30 pm with a minimum of 1/2 hour for lunch. Departmental coverage will be provided. However, each member of the non-classroom and professional faculty will have the option of requesting a four-day (4) work week, 33-3/4 hour week upon their request to the P&B Committee and the approval of the supervising Dean or Vice President. Said request will be granted or denied by the President at his discretion. (Four days, Monday-Friday, need not be

consecutive.) Notwithstanding Memorandum of Agreement # 107 dated October 2, 1986, non-classroom and professional faculty who are on a four-day work week schedule shall be permitted to work part time teaching assignments on the fifth day during normal working hours upon request and subject to the approval of the appropriate Vice President. Said request will be granted or denied by the appropriate Vice President at his/her discretion. The decision of the Vice President shall not be grievable nor arbitrable. During the period between Memorial Day and Labor Day, the College Administration can establish a four-day (4) work week on an institutional basis. Under this circumstance, an individual can either work the extended work day or may elect to use leave time to maintain the 6-3/4 hour day. Non-classroom and professional faculty shall have the option to request a work year based on a schedule of thirty (30) weeks at seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours per day, five days per week, and the remainder of the work year (22 weeks) at six and three quarter (6-3/4) hours per day, five days per week. The thirty (30) weeks shall cover the normal Fall and Spring semesters. Faculty may elect the accrued time optional work day of 7-1/2 hours on a one (1) semester basis. The additional accrued time shall be taken in the academic year in which it is earned. A decision by the College to deny a request for this option shall not be grievable.

- Non-classroom and professional faculty requested to work overtime by the appropriate supervising Dean or Vice President or Department Chairperson who is authorized by the appropriate Dean, shall be compensated at their straight time hourly rate of pay, not to exceed \$60.00 nor be less than \$16.50. Compensatory time must be used by December 31st of the following academic year. Compensatory time at the rate of time and a half may be given at the discretion of the supervising administrator only if requested by the faculty member. No faculty member shall be required to work overtime.
- 5-2.7 Professional and non-classroom faculty hired after February 1, 1975, may be employed by the College outside the normal work schedule, not exceeding 33 3/4 hours a week, five days a week. They must be so advised at the time of their initial hiring. Faculty employed after January 24, 1977 must be so advised in writing at the time of their initial hiring that their schedule may be varied.

SECTION 6 WORK DAY

- 6-1 Classroom Faculty
- 6-1.1 Although all classroom faculty are normally required to be

available for assignments each week day during the academic year between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m., this does not mean that they must be on campus between the aforementioned hours

- 6-1.2 Teaching assignments shall normally be compact, not usually extending in any one day for longer than five (5) hours.
- 6-2 In the event of short term shifts in student needs, the following are two procedures which may be utilized to enable faculty to fulfill their required teaching load:
- A faculty member who wishes to teach in another academic department due to insufficient contact hours in his/her own department must formally apply and be interviewed by the department. The decision of the P&B Committee is to be in writing and should indicate the duration of the appointment. Rejection by the P&B Committees should only be for reasons of professional qualifications. The appointment may be renewable. The maximum amount of shared time shall be nine (9) hours (which may be waived in unusual circumstances with the approval of the department involved, the Administration, and the Union);
- a) During the period of time a faculty member is teaching in more than one department and/or teaching outside his/her normal department, he/she is considered to be a member of the department in which he/she holds rank. Thus, the faculty member has no voting rights in the new department. The faculty member will also be observed during each semester that he/she is teaching outside the department in which he/she holds rank. Evaluation shall be only for the purpose of consideration of shared time in the future and shall not be considered for any other purpose.
- b) In the case of a faculty member sharing a teaching load with the Department of English, the normal 15 contact hour load will be maintained with normal office hours. If, on the other hand, the faculty member teaches a complete program in the Department of English, the 15 contact hours will be as per contract for English faculty.
- c) In the event a faculty member wishes to transfer on a permanent basis to a new department, the procedure and stipulations of the contract will be followed.
- 6-2.2 A faculty member may be assigned to evening and/or summer classes in order to fulfill his/her full-time teaching load.

SECTION 7

LINCC LECTURER & LINCC COORDINATOR WORK YEAR/WORK WEEK/WORK DAY

7-1 LINCC Lecturers

- a) The LINCC Lecturer work week is Monday through Friday, either morning or afternoon schedule. Classes normally shall not begin before 8:00 a.m. nor end after 5:30 p.m. Each class shall meet for four (4) clock hours.
- b) All LINCC Lecturers shall provide academic advisement and registration to students applying to or continuing in the LINCC program. This advisement shall be scheduled by the LINCC Coordinator for two (2) hours per week from:
 - i) November 15 to the end of the Fall semester.
 - ii) April 15 to the end of the Spring semester.
 - iii) All LINCC Lecturers shall be scheduled for two (2) four-hour advisement blocks in May or August or January.

7-2 LINCC Coordinator

- a) There shall be a LINCC Coordinator who shall be elected by the LINCC faculty. The LINCC Coordinator shall serve a two year term. A faculty member may serve as LINCC Coordinator for a maximum of 2 consecutive two-year terms; there must be a term (two-year) break before being allowed to run for re-election.
- b) The LINCC Coordinator's work week shall be twenty hours per week
- c) The LINCC Coordinator's duties shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - i) each semester set up curriculum level faculty groups for norming, curriculum review and development; and make recommendations to LINCC Advisory Committee;
 - ii) coordinate student assessment activities;
 - iii) responsible for LINCC program participation in collegewide assessment;
 - iv) set up conversation partners and writing workshops;
 - v) coordinate all LINCC faculty advisement hours;
 - vi) create and maintain LINCC Facebook page in conjunction with the Office of College Relations;
 - vii) work with Grants Office to develop proposals

SECTION 8

EARLY A.M. CLASSES AND ASSIGNMENTS

8-1 Should the College Administration offer sections or make assignments prior to 8:00 a.m., the sections will be taught by full-time faculty and the assignments performed by non-classroom or professional faculty on a voluntary basis as part of their regular work day. If full-time faculty are unavailable for such assignments, the College may assign such courses to part-

time faculty. In the event classes so scheduled require preparation by Technical Assistants, such assignments shall be voluntary and begin no earlier than one-half (½ hour) prior to classes. In the event that such assignments are scheduled prior to 6:00 a.m., non-classroom and professional faculty shall be paid at the overtime rate for time worked prior to the start of the non-classroom or professional faculty's normal work day.

SECTION 9 DISTANCE LEARNING

- 9-1 **Definition:** Distance Education courses include nontraditional delivery modalities such as, but not limited to, radio, television, video-conferencing, mail, and the Internet. This includes hybrid courses.
- 9-1.1 Online course is any course in which the instructor is physically separated from his/her students in time and/or space and in which all of the course interaction (with the allowable exception of proctored midterm and final exams) takes place electronically via the Internet.
- 9-1.2 College of the Air (COA) course is any course in which the instructor is physically separated from his/her students in time and/or space and in which all of the course interaction (with the allowable exception of proctored midterm and final exams) takes place electronically. COA may employ tapes, mail, radio, television, video-conferencing, as well as the Internet.
- 9-1.3 A hybrid (blended learning) course combines face to face classroom instruction with education technologies using the online course management system. The course will be divided evenly, 50% face to face and 50% online. Neither component can be merely supplementary to the other. Interaction between students and faculty must be substantial and ongoing throughout the semester to provide students with a face to face and online moderated learning experience.
- 9-1.4 Web-enhanced course is any classroom-based course in which the instructor uses a course management application to supplement classroom instruction.

9-2 **Ownership of Course Materials**

- 9-2.1 A faculty member who develops course material as a project authorized or directed by the College shall not retain ownership of course outlines and general materials relating to the course. These materials are the sole property of the institution. Lecture notes and other instructor produced materials such as, but not limited to, discussion questions, course-specific applications, quizzes, and exams shall be considered the property of the instructor.
- 9-2.2 Distance education courses developed at Nassau Community

College may not be offered at other institutions.

9-3 **Course Development**

- 9-3.1 Course development is recognized as either (1) creating a new distance education course or (2) converting or adapting an existing course to a distance education format. Development shall not include the sole use of preexisting materials to create or to teach a distance education course.
- 9-3.2 Academic departments must follow College policies and procedures to convert remedial and credit bearing courses and to develop new distance education courses. Where additional expenditures are required for development and/or where the College's educational programs will be modified or changed significantly, the Administration reserves the right to approve or disapprove the changes and/or expenditures.

9-4 **Support**

- 9-4.1 Faculty members shall be eligible for a \$2500.00 stipend for the development of a distance education course upon application to the Vice President of Academic Affairs. Stipends approved by the Vice President of Academic Affairs pursuant to this subsection shall be payable in two installments. \$1000.00 shall be paid to the faculty member for the development of the distance education course and \$1500.00 shall be paid to the faculty member after the course is first made available to students for registration.
- 9-4.2 The College shall provide training and technical support to faculty who are participating in distance education or have expressed an interest to do so. The commitment to training and technical support is not subject to grievance.
- 9-4.3 The College shall determine the course management system to be used.

9-5 Class Size

9-5.1 The maximum class size for a distance education or hybrid course shall not exceed eighty-five percent (85%) of the maximum class size for a corresponding classroom-based course.

9-6 Evaluation

9-6.1 Faculty members who teach distance education courses shall be evaluated in the same manner as classroom faculty. Evaluation of faculty members teaching one or more distance education courses shall be conducted in accordance with Section 18 of this Agreement.

9-7 Course Assignment Methods

9-7.1 It is the responsibility of the academic department to establish and review criteria for assignment of faculty to distance education courses. Faculty must meet College and Department qualifications for appointment and demonstrate evidence of

- proficiency to teach a distance education course.
- 9-7.2 Assignment to teach a distance education course shall be voluntary.
- 9-7.3 Full-time assignment to teach a distance education course shall follow existing contractual procedures. A faculty member who develops a distance education course or converts a course shall be given the right of first refusal to teach the course for the first two semesters that it is offered.
- 9-7.4 The College shall not sponsor a distance education course offered by any other institution or provide a reception site for any course that would compete with an NCC course currently being taught and/or listed in the College catalog.
- 9-7.5 Faculty are eligible to teach no more than 50 percent of their full-time yearly teaching load as distance education courses per academic year, with a maximum of two-thirds (2/3) of that 50 percent in any one semester. Seminar hours may not be used in these calculations.

9-8 **Office Hours**

9-8.1 Faculty who teach distance education courses may fulfill up to one hour of their office hours obligation off-campus. The distance education office hour schedule must be posted in the same way as other office hours. Faculty must be available at this time to provide instructional or other assistance.

9-9 **Privacy and Surveillance**

9-9.1 Access to distance education courses by the College shall be applicable and consistent with policies relating to classroombased courses and the NCC policy on "Acceptable Use of Computer Resources and Electronic Communications."

SECTION 10 WEEKEND COLLEGE

- Full-time classroom faculty may volunteer to teach part of their full-time schedule in the Weekend College (classes offered Friday evening after 5:30 pm through Sunday) subject to the following:
 - a) Faculty may teach only one day of the Weekend College.
 - b) Faculty teaching one day of the Weekend College shall be assigned the remaining courses of the full-time schedule on three (3) days of the week (Monday through Friday).
 - c) The administration may permit faculty to teach classes that meet more than one weekend day. In these circumstances, the administration shall provide to the NCCFT a rationale for those assignments.
 - d) Faculty may teach no more than six contact hours in the Weekend College.
 - e) Faculty who elect to teach both a day class and a Friday evening

- Weekend College class will only be permitted to count Friday as one day of their four-day week.
- f) Faculty shall schedule a pro-rated portion of their required office hours (Section 5-1.5) as part of their Weekend College assignment.
- In the event Weekend College classes require that Technical Assistants (TA's) or Technologists or any other unit member be available, such assignments shall be voluntary and subject to the following:
 - (a) Non-classroom faculty (as defined above) on a five day work schedule may not work more than 20% of their weekly schedule in the Weekend College;
 - (b) Non-classroom faculty (as defined above) on a four-day work schedule may not work more than 25% of their weekly schedule in the Weekend College.
- All assignments in the Weekend College must conform to the provisions of the current contract unless otherwise specified.

SECTION 11 OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES AND PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT

- The College recognizes an obligation to make available to the community the professional competence and technical knowledge of the faculty members. The potential value of such outside employment to the faculty and College is recognized.
- Full-time employment by Nassau Community College shall be 11-2 considered the primary employment of the individual who shall limit other compensated professional activity so as not to impair educational effectiveness. At the direction of either the appropriate Vice President or the appropriate Department Chairperson, a full-time faculty member may be asked to file a multiple position form detailing hours and other circumstances of other compensated employment. This form shall be reviewed by the appropriate Vice President and the appropriate Department Chairperson and Personnel and Budget Committee. In the event there appears to be a conflict with the responsibilities for primary employment or impaired educational effectiveness, the Department Chairperson, in conjunction with the department Personnel and Budget Committee and appropriate Vice President, shall attempt to resolve the conflict. If it cannot be resolved at this level, it shall become a Step 3 grievance procedure.

SECTION 12 STUDENT FACULTY RATIO

College-wide student-faculty ratio shall be 21.1/1.

SECTION 13 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT POLICY

- As an equal opportunity employer, Nassau Community College shall not discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, sexual preference, disability, or marital status, except as such conditions constitute bonafide occupational or assignment qualifications.
- The appointment policy of Nassau Community College shall comply with applicable provisions of federal, state and municipal laws and ordinances and the College's Affirmative Action Plan with respect to equal employment opportunity and non-discrimination in the rates of pay, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, including work assignments, educational and training opportunities, use of facilities, and opportunities to serve on committees or decision making bodies.

SECTION 14 ADMINISTRATORS TEACHING

- Members of the Administration are encouraged to teach from time to time during the academic year, as long as such teaching does not interfere with their normal duties, subject to the following:
- 14-1.1 He/she must meet the minimum academic requirements of that department as determined by the department's P&B Committee.
- 14-1.2 No administrator shall teach more than one course per semester.
- 14-1.3 No administrator shall be assigned a course until all full-time faculty have received their schedules.
- 14-1.4 The teaching performance of an administrator shall be subject to the normal departmental evaluation process. These evaluations will serve to determine whether future teaching assignments are offered to the administrator.

SECTION 15 FACULTY FILES

- There shall be only one set of official personnel files, which shall be kept in the Office of Human Resources. These shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
- **15-1.1 Personnel Information**
- 15-1.2 Information relating to the employee's academic and professional accomplishments as submitted by the employee or placed in the file at his/her request.
- 15-1.3 Records Generated by the College
- 15-1.4 Memoranda of discussions between the employee and his/her Department Chairperson relating to evaluations of the employee's professional performance.
- 15-2 There shall be a separate pre-employment personnel file which

- shall contain confidential references and materials to be utilized solely in the initial appointment process.
- No materials shall be placed in a faculty member's personnel file unless said faculty member has been so informed by memorandum from the Office of Human Resources and has been given an opportunity to examine said material and to attach any comments he/she may desire, unless said material has already been initialed by said faculty member. If the faculty member does not concur in any evaluation or statement concerning him/her, notations to this effect shall be affixed to said material.
- 15-4 All documents shall be dated and sequentially numbered as received.
- Only the following people shall be authorized to examine the files of a faculty member: Members of the Board of Trustees, the President, the appropriate Supervising Administrator, the appropriate Chairperson, members of the Personnel and Budget Committee, members of the Professional Advisory Committee, members of the Promotion and Tenure Committee, LINCC Coordinator, LINCC Advisory Committee, the faculty member himself/herself with or without an advisor of his/her choice, the Personnel Officer and necessary clerical personnel. Committee members mentioned above and Trustees may see only relevant data only when a faculty member's application for promotion or tenure is being evaluated, or when a faculty member is being considered for reappointment or dismissal.
- With respect to access to faculty files, "the President" shall hereafter include any designee of the President who is a management employee of the College (or a College/County Attorney) who reviews the file at the direction of the President and who indicates in the file the fact of his/her review and the authority therefore.
- No other person inside or outside the College shall be permitted to examine any personnel files under any circumstances whatsoever except with the consent of the concerned faculty member. No file or copy thereof shall leave the Office of Human Resources (except to the President's Office and back by special messenger), nor shall any information contained therein be made available to any outside source or agency without the written permission of the faculty member concerned, except as required by law.
- When the personnel records of a faculty member are used by an authorized person, a memorandum of the use of these records, which shall include the purpose of the use, shall be mailed to the faculty member concerned.
- The official personnel file shall constitute the only verified and reliable document for the purposes of evaluation, promotion,

tenure, reappointment, and dismissal. The faculty member may, however, submit additional verifiable data on his/her application for promotion and/or tenure.

Each department and the office of the appropriate Dean may maintain a file for each faculty member which shall include only his/her date of initial and succeeding service, rank, step, salary, record of promotion, and tenure status.

SECTION 16 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

- 16-1 The College recognizes that academic freedom is essential to the free search for truth and to its exposition.
- All faculty members are entitled to full freedom in the publication of the results of their research, subject to performance of their other academic duties. Research conducted during the normal working day for pecuniary return must be based upon an understanding with the President. A faculty member is entitled to freedom in the classroom in discussing his/her subject, but should be careful not to introduce into his/her teaching a controversial matter which has no relation to his/her subject.

SECTION 17 COLLEGE-WIDE MEETINGS

- 17-1 Two faculty/administration meetings shall be scheduled in the Academic Calendar.
- The President may call such other faculty/administration meetings as he/she shall see fit.

SECTION 18 EVALUATION OF PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE

- There shall be on-going assessment of the professional activities of all faculty to maintain academic and professional excellence. The purpose shall be to encourage the improvement of individual performance and provide the basis for assessment of professional competence and fulfillment of professional obligations.
- A five-year professional development plan shall be drafted for all new full-time faculty. This plan shall be derived through consultation among the new faculty member and his/her department chairperson and Personnel and Budget Committee and forwarded to the appropriate Dean. The purpose of this plan shall be to guide the faculty member's progress toward tenure and to assist in addressing projected departmental directions and the expectations of the initial hiring. Progress in implementing

the Professional Development Plan (PDP) must be reflected in the Year-End Evaluation. Both the Professional Development Plan and the Year-End Evaluation must be reviewed by departmental P&B Committees and by the P&T in evaluating applications for tenure for all probationary faculty.

- 18-3 In addition to the PDP, there shall be two forms of assessment:
 - a) Classroom Observation To measure effectiveness in teaching;
 and
 - b) Year-End Evaluation Report.
- All observations and evaluations of individual faculty members shall be in writing. The individual concerned shall discuss the observation or the evaluation with the evaluator prior to the preparation of the final written report. The individual faculty member shall sign each observation or evaluation report and be permitted to file a written reply to any portions of said report to which the faculty member may take exception. Each department observation or evaluation report shall be submitted through the Department Chairperson to the Department P&B Committee within one (1) week of the observation or evaluation visit and/or conference. All observation and evaluation reports shall follow the department evaluation guidelines. Each written report shall be placed in the official faculty file within thirty (30) days of said observation or evaluation.
- 18-3.2 **Classroom Faculty** The Year-End Evaluation Report may include observation of teaching and shall include evaluation of performance of professional duties. It shall be based on the consideration of the following:
 - a) Mastery of the subject matter;
 - b) Effectiveness in teaching;
 - c) Scholarly ability;
 - d) Effectiveness of College service;
 - e) Continued professional growth.
- 18-3.3 **Non-classroom and Professional Faculty** The evaluations of non-classroom faculty with academic rank shall consider:
 - a) Mastery of the subject matter:
 - b) Effectiveness in the Library or effectiveness in Student Personnel Services;
 - c) Scholarly ability;
 - d) Effectiveness of College service;
 - e) Continued professional growth.
- 18-3.4 Academic departments and administrative units shall develop specific evaluation criteria for professional faculty. These criteria shall be submitted to the appropriate Vice President and/or designee.
- 18-4 **All Faculty** Non-tenured full-time and all adjunct faculty shall be evaluated at least once during an academic year by the

Department Chairperson and/or the Department P&B Committee (or immediate supervisor for those professionals not attached to academic departments). The evaluation of classroom nontenured faculty must include classroom observation. Nontenured faculty shall also be evaluated once during an academic year by the appropriate Vice President or designee and/or appropriate Dean or designee. Tenured faculty may be evaluated on an annual basis by the Department Chairperson and/or the Committee (or immediate supervisor for professionals not attached to academic departments), and by the appropriate Vice President or designee and/or appropriate Dean or designee. However, all tenured faculty must be evaluated at least once every two (2) years with a Year-End Evaluation report placed in their official file. Said evaluations of tenured faculty may include a classroom observation, if appropriate. No faculty member shall be evaluated more than once in any academic year by the appropriate Vice President or designee and/or appropriate Dean or designee except on the invitation of the faculty member. The year-end evaluation report for non-tenured and tenured faculty shall include a section for the comments and recommendations of the appropriate Vice President or the appropriate Dean, or their designee. The term "appropriate Dean" shall include the faculty member's Area Dean or supervising administrator.

- No other person may participate in the evaluation process except with the approval of the faculty member. The evaluation process will not be used to harass a faculty member.
- Each evaluator shall submit through the Department Chairperson a written evaluation report to the Department P&B Committee within one week of the evaluation visit. All evaluators shall follow the department evaluation procedures.
- 18-7 LINCC Lecturers Evaluation of Professional Competence: Sections 18-1 through 18-6 shall not apply to LINCC Lecturers.
- All Non-tenured LINCC Lecturers shall be evaluated as follows –
 a) One classroom observation in the Fall semester and one
 classroom observation in the Spring semester. One of these
 observations shall be performed by the LINCC Coordinator and
 one by a member of the LINCC Advisory Committee.
 b) One student conference evaluation shall be performed annually
 by the LINCC Coordinator.
- All tenured LINCC Lecturers shall have one classroom observation and one student conference evaluation per year performed by the LINCC Coordinator or a member of the LINCC Advisory Committee. LINCC Lecturers shall be given advance notice of not less than one week for all observations and evaluations.

SECTION 19 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- The Union or any member of the Bargaining Unit shall have the right to present his/her grievance in accordance with the procedure described herein, containing the steps set forth below, with or without a representative of the Union, free from interference, coercion, restraint, discrimination or reprisal. At each stage of the grievance process, the Union shall be a full participant in all grievances.
- There shall be a three-person Grievance Board, one member to be selected by the College Administration, one member selected by the Union, and both shall choose a third member. The third member shall serve a one-year term but be eligible for annual reappointments thereafter. Members of the Grievance Board shall serve one-year terms, and may be reappointed to the Board.

19-3 **STEP I Informal Stage**

Any faculty member in the bargaining unit may present and 19-3.1 discuss his/her grievance within ninety (90) days of the date of the alleged grievance, either with or without a representative of the Union. Similarly, a representative of the Union may present and discuss a grievance on behalf of any employee or group of employees with the department chairperson or appropriate supervisor of the department involved and which shall be entirely informal. Any settlement, withdrawal or disposition of a grievance at this informal stage shall not constitute a binding precedent in the settlement of similar complaints or grievances. A determination at this step by a supervisor who is not a member of the unit which is acceptable to the grievant and the Union is binding on the parties. However, such a determination at this step by a department chairperson or a supervisor who is not a member of the unit which is not acceptable to the College/County Administration is not binding and the grievance may proceed to Step 2.

19-4 STEP II Formal Stage - The College President or his/her designee.

If a grievance is not satisfactorily adjusted in Step I, the grievant may, within ten (10) days, file a notice of grievance with the Nassau Community College Grievance Board. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the decision from Step I, the grievant shall present the matter to the College President or his/her designee. The College President or his/her designee shall make his/her determination within ten (10) working days after the matter is presented to him/her and after appropriate consultation with any or all parties to the grievance, provided, however, that if the employee has not requested that the Union representative

present the matter on his/her behalf, no such determination shall be made without two (2) days prior notification of the grievance by the College President or his/her designee to the Union.

19-5 **STEP III Grievance Board**

- The grievant or the President of the Union may appeal the decision made under Step II to the Nassau Community College Grievance Board within five (5) days after receipt of such decision. Hearings shall begin no later than ten (10) days after the receipt of notice of appeal. The procedure for the processing of the grievance before the College Grievance Board shall be as set forth by the rules and regulations of such Board. The Grievance Board shall issue a written decision within twenty (20) working days from the date hearings are concluded. The determination of the Grievance Board shall provide for retroactive pay in the event that the County is ultimately determined to be wrong in a matter involving loss of pay and shall be retroactive as to seniority in a matter where the County was wrong as to seniority.
- 19-5.2 Copies of the decision of the Grievance Board are to be given to the grievant, the President of the Union, the President of the College, the County Executive, and the Office of Labor Relations.
- 19-5.3 If within five (5) days of receipt of the decision of the Grievance Board, the President of the Union, the President of the College, or the Office of Labor Relations of the County objects to the Grievance Board's decision, any of the foregoing parties may appeal the decision to advisory arbitration by serving written notice to the American Arbitration Association (AAA) and to all parties involved. Failure to appeal the Grievance Board's decision in the manner specified above shall mean the Grievance Board's decision stands.

19-6 **STEP IV Advisory Arbitration**

- 19-6.1 **Selection of an Arbitrator -** Within ten (10) working days of receipt of written notice of appeal to Advisory Arbitration, the AAA shall supply to each party a list of qualified arbitrators from the AAA panel. The NCCFT and the College shall select the arbitrator according to AAA procedures.
- 19-6.2 **Decision of the AAA Arbitrator** The selected arbitrator will hear the matter promptly and will issue his/her decision not later than thirty (30) calendar days from the close of the hearing, or if oral arguments have been waived then the date of final statements and proofs are submitted to him/her. The arbitrator will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on the issue in writing to the County Executive, the Union, and the President of the College.
- 19-6.3 **Cost of Arbitration -** The cost for the services of the arbitrator.

including expenses, if any, will be shared equally by the County/College and the Union.

Appeal of Arbitrator's Decision - Within five (5) days of receipt of the arbitrator's decision the President of the College, or the Union, may appeal the arbitrator's decision to the County Executive for a final determination. Such appeal shall be in writing and served on all other parties to the grievance at the time it is served on the County Executive. If the arbitrator's decision is not appealed to the County Executive within this five (5) day period, the decision of the arbitrator shall stand.

19-7 **STEP V - County Executive**

- 19-7.1 If the arbitrator's decision is appealed, the County Executive may at his/her discretion, hold a hearing with all parties to the grievance present. The County Executive's final determination of the grievance shall be based on the grievance record, the findings of fact as established therein, and other relevant factors.
- Any party shall be entitled to submit briefs to the County Executive by filing a Notice of Intent to do so within five (5) days of the sending of a Notice of Appeal by the appealing party. Briefs shall then be submitted within fifteen (15) days, and reply briefs (if any) within five (5) days thereafter.
- 19-7.3 For purposes of the County Executive's determination, and for any Article 78 proceeding which is instituted to challenge that determination, the grievance record shall include the briefs permitted hereby, if any.
- 19-7.4 In addition to the grievance record, the County Executive may consider any other relevant factors.
- 19-7.5 Should the County Executive fail to render a final determination in writing within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the arbitrator's decision, or notice of appeal, the decision of the arbitrator shall stand.

19-8 Grievance Procedure - Miscellaneous Provisions

- 19-8.1 This grievance procedure shall not be used to adjust a complaint where:
 - The law establishes and requires a specific procedure and method of redress inconsistent with the procedures herein established, or the Board is without authority to act.
- 19-8.2 Failure at any step of the procedure provided herein to communicate a decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next step.
- 19-8.3 Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits, shall be deemed to be a waiver of the right to appeal.
- 19-8.4 For the purpose of these grievance procedures, the term "day" means working day unless otherwise specified.
- 19-8.5 Conferences and hearings held under the procedure provided

herein shall be conducted at a time and place which will afford a fair and reasonable opportunity for all persons entitled to be present at such conference or hearing to attend. When such conference or hearing is held during working hours, all individuals necessary for the conference or hearing shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose.

- 19-8.6 Grievances shall be recorded on the standard grievance form as provided in Appendix 4 attached hereto.
- 19-8.7 By mutual consent, the parties may expedite the grievance procedures established herein.

SECTION 20 ACADEMIC SENATE

- It is the Academic Senate of Nassau Community College that shall provide the College community with voice in general educational goals and policies as well as other matters of concern to the College community. The Academic Senate shall have responsibilities and powers in the following areas unless otherwise restricted by law and the provisions of this contract.
- To examine, approve and recommend curricula for examination by the President and the Board of Trustees.
- 20-1.2 To recommend requirements for admission, degrees, and graduation.
- 20-1.3 To formulate and propose academic policies including policies on class size, academic advisement, educational TV, and academic calendar for the consideration of the President and the Board of Trustees.
- 20-1.4 To provide a forum for the consideration of academic matters of mutual interest to the College community.
- 20-1.5 To formulate and propose policies in those aspects of student life which relate to the educational process.
- 20-1.6 The Academic Senate shall annually publish an updated list of the Academic Departments.
- The Academic Senate shall mean that association representing full-time faculty and Administration (as defined by contract) and students of Nassau Community College.
- The Academic Senate shall have the following composition for the purpose of representing its constituents:

 70% faculty elected proportionately from academic departments;
 20% students elected by the student body;
 10% administrators appointed by the President.
- In addition there shall be one (1) Senator appointed by the President of the NCCFT, one (1) Senator from and elected by all faculty not attached to academic departments and one (1) Senator from and elected by the LINCC Lecturers.
- A total of fifty-four (54) contact hours (or equivalent for non-

classroom faculty) per academic year shall be provided to the Academic Senate for the 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 academic years. In each of the above academic years, six (6) of the fifty-four (54) hours provided must be utilized by the Chair of the College Wide Curriculum Committee (CWCC). This provision shall sunset effective August 31, 2017. The NCCFT herewith expressly waives the applicability of Section 209-a (1) (e) of the Taylor Law to the entirety of this provision.

SECTION 21 ACADEMIC DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERSONS

- The academic department Chairperson is a member of the instructional faculty and shall function as the chief academic officer of his/her department. He/she shall carry out the department's policies as well as those of the faculty, administration, and the Board of Trustees which are related to it and generally supervise and coordinate the activities of the department.
- 21-1.1 Department Chairpersons will be responsible for the conduct of instruction at Nassau Community College during the day, evening and summer sessions.

21-2 **ELECTION**

- 21-2.1 Each academic department will elect a Chairperson at a department meeting in April. Election shall be for a four (4) year term and the Chairperson shall assume his/her duties on August 20th of the year in which he/she is elected. All full-time faculty of the department may vote. Balloting shall be secret with a majority vote of the department necessary for election. The Chairperson must hold both academic rank and academic tenure. A unit member who has been granted tenure, which will be effective September 1st, is eligible to run for Department Chairperson in April of the year that precedes the effective date of tenure. If elected, this individual will assume the Chairperson's office as of September 1st. In the interim (August 20 – August 31), the outgoing Chairperson will remain in office. In the event that the outgoing Chairperson is unable to serve, the Secretary of the P&B Committee shall function as temporary Chairperson. An individual can be elected for more than one term.
- In the case of resignation, retirement or removal, the department shall hold a new election within one (1) month prior to that date for the remainder of the term of office. Should a vacancy occur in the interim, the secretary of the P&B Committee shall function as temporary Chairperson.
- 21-2.3 The appropriate Vice President and/or the appropriate Dean shall submit an annual report to each department which will include the

- evaluation of the Chairperson's effectiveness. The department Chairperson shall also submit an annual report of the departmental activities for the year. The subject contents of these reports will be outlined by the Administration in concert with the Union.
- 21-2.4 The appropriate Vice President and/or the appropriate Dean shall have the right to remove a department Chairperson after a minimum of one semester service for just cause.
- Notice shall be presented at least thirty (30) days prior to removal. The Chairperson so removed shall be entitled to a copy of particulars regarding this action. This decision shall be subject to the contract Step III level grievance procedure. The Step III decision may be appealed through the remaining steps of the grievance procedure.
- 21-2.6 In the event a Chairperson is granted a sabbatical leave for either one semester or a full year, the Department, following contractual procedures for the election of the Chair, shall elect an Acting Chairperson for that semester or academic year. If the sabbatical is for the Spring semester or for an academic year, the Acting Chairperson shall function in that capacity for the Summer Session under the terms and conditions of the NCCFT Contract. The result of that election, in order to be certified, should be filed with the appropriate Dean and the NCCFT.

21-3 DUTIES

- 21-3.1 In order to maintain standards and insure academic excellence within the department, the Chairperson's responsibilities shall include but not be limited to the following:
 - a) Convene and chair regular meetings of the department at which time the Chairperson should report the actions of departmental committees and also information concerning administrative policies and/or directives.
 - b) Have responsibility for departmental correspondence and departmental records.
 - c) Have responsibility for the allocation of funds and the implementation of the departmental budget with the approval of the Vice President of Academic Affairs. Approval shall not be denied except for unusual circumstances which shall be communicated to the department in writing.
 - d) Consider and implement the policies of the Personnel and Budget Committee and other committees and report these actions to the departmental faculty. In those cases in which there is a disagreement between the Chairperson and P&B Committee, or other committees, the issue shall be reported to the department for resolution, except in the matter of normal personnel decisions.
 - e) Coordinate and supervise the activities of the allocated clerical staff of the department.
 - f) Serve as ex officio member of the departmental academic

- committees and coordinate the activities of these committees and report these actions on a regular basis.
- g) Coordinate the academic advisement and registration procedures with the department.
- h) Supervise and manage the physical facilities under the jurisdiction of the department.
- i) Transmit the tentative departmental budget to the appropriate dean or vice president with his/her own recommendations.
- j) Represent the department in articulation with other departments, the administration, and outside agencies concerning educational activities.
- k) Be responsible for promoting the academic growth of all members of the department.
- 1) Serve as Chairperson of the departmental P&B Committee.
- m) Be available during the periods of registration for consultation.
- n) Participate in and supervise the process by which adjunct faculty are evaluated.
- o) Be responsible for selection of day adjunct faculty following established College policy. The Chairpersons of Student Personnel Services and Library shall be responsible for and coordinate all hours of departmental functions and activities. In addition, the Chairperson of SPS will:
- (1) Implement departmental policies on student developmental and educational issues.
- (2) Communicate departmental input on student developmental and educational issues to the appropriate dean or vice president.
- p) In order to insure the maintenance of quality in the educational programs, the Department Chairpersons, who report to their Dean will be involved in the assignment and evaluation of faculty in their respective departments, in accordance with existing contractual provisions.
- q) Department Chairpersons will be responsible to insure that individual courses are taught according to the approved outline, so that students have the opportunity to achieve the objectives set forth in said outlines.
- r) Department Chairpersons shall have the following specific duties:
- (1) Recommend course offerings and course schedules within allocated time blocks with the approval of the appropriate Dean.
- (2) Review and evaluate the credentials of all faculty.
- (3) Maintain a list of courses for which each adjunct faculty member is academically qualified, which list will be updated annually.
- (4) Coordinate the evaluation of adjunct faculty as requested by the College Administration and provided by contract.
- (5) Schedule at least two informational faculty meetings during the academic year at a time when adjunct faculty can attend.
- (6) Consistent with the Policies and Procedures for the Assignment

- and Evaluation of Faculty as contained in Appendix 5, recommend the assignment of faculty in the evening and summer sessions in accordance with appropriate contract provisions.
- (7) Level classes per Academic Senate guidelines.
- s) Oversee and implement departmental participation in institution-wide initiatives such as assessment and program review.
- t) Share coordination responsibilities for faculty participation in the Advisement Center.
- u) One-third of department chairs on a rotating basis will be appointed to the Academic Senate committees (exclusive of Academic Chairs committee).

21-4 **WORK WEEK**

- 21-4.1 During the fall and spring semesters, academic department Chairpersons, exclusive of Library and SPS Chairpersons, shall:
 - a) Be on campus and available for the performance of College duties and teaching assignments for four (4) days per week; and
 - b) Be present on the campus for 6-3/4 hours on average, on each of such days; and
 - c) Perform their College duties no less than 4-3/4 hours on each such day; and
 - d) Post office hours to cover departmental duties, based on the following:

Numbe	er of Full-time		Office Hrs.
Equiva	lent Faculty	Released Time	Per Week
a.	1 - 3	6 hours per year	4 hours
b.	4 - 5	9 hours per year	5 hours
c.	6 -10	12 hours per year	6 hours
d.	11 -15	15 hours per year	7 hours
e.	16 -22	18 hours per year	8 hours
f.	23 -32	21 hours per year	9 hours
g.	33 -43	24 hours per year	10 hours
ĥ.	44 +	27 hours per year*	12 hours

^{*}Excluding English Dept. Chair who shall be granted 21 hours per year.

21-5 **RELEASED TIME**

- 21-5.1 Released time for department Chairpersons shall be granted as above, except when a national accrediting agency requires some modifications. The Chairperson of the Library shall be relieved of all departmental duties in order to carry out his/her duties as a Chairperson.
- 21-5.2 Effective September 1, 2014, in departments of thirty-five (35) or fewer full-time teaching faculty three (3) additional hours of release time per semester will be provided. In departments of more than thirty-five (35) full-time teaching faculty, six (6) additional hours of release time per semester will be provided.

Said release time will be assigned by the Chairperson of the Department to faculty within the department for the purpose of providing assistance to the Chair in the performance of the Chairperson's duties.

21-6 EVENING/SUMMER OFFICE HOURS

21-6.1 Department Chairpersons will schedule evening office hours for the Fall/Spring based on 14 week semesters.

Ch	airperson	Additional F	aculty Designee
	Office		Office
FTE	Hours/Sem.	FTE	Hours/Sem.
30-36	72 Hours	37-48	12 Hours
25-29	60 Hours	49-60	24 Hours
19-24	48 Hours	61-72	36 Hours
13-18	36 Hours	73-84	48 Hours
7-12	24 Hours	85-96	60 Hours
1-6	12 Hours	97 +	72 Hours

- 21-6.2 Summer office hours shall follow the same schedule.
- 21-6.3 Office hours will be on a flexible schedule.
- No one shall be required to schedule office hours more than two nights per week.
- 21-6.5 The schedule of specific hours will be approved by the appropriate Dean.
- 21-6.6 Department Chairpersons will normally not be required to be on campus after June 15. However, Department Chairpersons or their designees shall be available for emergency purposes to deal with specific problems.
- 21-6.7 The schedule of office hours is independent of the time spent for contract sign-up and grade collection.
- 21-6.8 The above office hours are to be scheduled independent of the contract signing process supervised by the Department Chairperson.

21-7 STIPEND

Effective September 1, 2008, Chairpersons shall be compensated at the rate of 1.67% of their current step of their academic rank multiplied by the number indicated below plus \$2,000.00:

FTE	SIZE (OF DEPARTMENT	MULTIPLIER
	a.	1-3	2.0
	b.	4-5	3.0
	c.	6-11	3.75
	d.	12-18	4.5
	e.	19-25	5.25
	f.	26-32	6.0
	g.	33-38	6.75
	h.	39-45	7.5

i.	46-52	8.25
j.	53 +	9.0
k.	SPS & Library	9.0
1.	English & Math	12.0

21-7.1 CHAIRPERSON EVENING SUPERVISION

Chairpersons shall be compensated for their evening and summer session duties based on their rank, number of annual department FTE (evening and summer Full-Time Employees from the prior year) – which will reference contact hours in the table that follows and at a rate of 1.8% of Step 5 for an assistant professor; 1.8% of Step 6 for associate professors, and professors.

SPS and the Library will be eligible for Evening Supervision payments effective 9/1/05 according to the following schedule:

| FACHLTY DESIGNATED

	CHAIRPERSON	FACULTY DESIGNATED FOR OFFICE HOURS**	
FTE*	ANNUAL	FTE*	ANNUAL
30-36	18 Contact Hours	37-48	3 Contact Hours
25-29	15 Contact Hours	49-60	6 Contact Hours
19-24	12 Contact Hours	61-72	9 Contact Hours
13-18	9 Contact Hours	73-84	12 Contact Hours
7-12	6 Contact Hours	85-96	15 Contact Hours
1- 6	3 Contact Hours	97 +	18 Contact Hours
SPS & Library	9 Contact Hours		

^{*}Rounded to the nearest integer.

In the event that a Chairperson is assigned to evaluate evening division faculty members, said Chairperson shall be compensated at the rate of \$25.85 per evaluation.

- This compensation shall be included in the annual maximum total of 18 contact hours. Thus, a Department Chairperson who receives 18 contact hours for the additional duties provided herein, would not be permitted to teach adjunct courses, and one who receives 12 contact hours would be permitted to teach a maximum of six hours, etc.
- 21-7.3 Seniority credit will accrue on a semester basis.
- 21-7.4 Courses taught during the evening and summer sessions will be paid at the prevailing rate.

SECTION 22 ASSISTANT TO CHAIR

In certain academic departments a member of the teaching faculty will be granted released time to assist the Chair in the administration of departmental activities. This individual will be

^{**}Faculty designated must be tenured.

- considered an Assistant to the Chair and will in no way alter the role of the secretary of the Personnel and Budget Committee.
- The Chair who nominates the Assistant to the Chair is the one who takes office on August 20. The P&B Committee which takes office on September 1 approves the appointment of the Assistant to the Chair.
- A tenured faculty member with academic rank will be selected by the Department Chair with the approval of the P&B Committee and will serve a term of one year.
- The individual may be reappointed to said position after a review by the Chairperson and the P&B Committee.
- The duties of the Assistant to the Chair will be to assist the Chair in those areas of departmental administration which do not require direct P&B approval, such as: responses to surveys, faculty workload, departmental offerings and procedures, inquiries on curriculum, advisement, placement, and problems of non-grievable nature.
- There will be an Assistant to the Chair in those departments in which there are thirty-five (35) full-time faculty. Effective 01-01-01, in departments with 35 to 69 full-time faculty, the Assistant to the Chair will receive three (3) hours of released time per semester. In departments with seventy (70) or more full-time faculty, the Assistant to the Chair will receive six (6) hours of released time per semester.

SECTION 23 WAGE INCREASE

Wage Increase - The following percentage increases to the existing salary schedule will take effect on the dates indicated below:

2013-2014 0%

Unit members (excluding LINCC Lecturers) shall be paid a onetime cash bonus of \$1,750 which shall not be added to the salary schedule. (Such amount shall be pro-rated for unit members who work less than the full academic year.)

*One-half of the applicable step increment shall be awarded to eligible unit members effective September 1, 2013.

2014-2015 0%

Unit members (excluding LINCC Lecturers) shall be paid a onetime cash bonus of \$2,000 which shall not be added to the salary schedule. (Such amount shall be pro-rated for unit members who work less than the full academic year.)

*Effective September 1, 2014, eligible unit members shall be awarded the remaining one-half of their applicable step

increment not granted during the 2013-2014 contract year.

2015-2016 1.75% (effective September 1, 2015) *Full step increment shall be awarded to eligible unit members effective September 1, 2015.

2016-2017 2.00% (effective September 1, 2016) *Full step increment shall be awarded to eligible unit members effective September 1, 2016.

- LINCC Lecturer Wages: The LINCC Lecturer salary schedule is set forth in Appendix 10 to this Agreement. LINCC Lecturers hired prior to May 1, 2014 shall be placed on step 4 of the LINCC Lecturer I salary schedule effective September 1, 2013. The initial step placement of LINCC Lecturers hired on or after May 1, 2014 shall be step 1 of the LINCC Lecturer I salary schedule. The percentage increases set forth in Section 23-1.1 for the 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 contract years shall be applied to the LINCC Lecturer salary schedule. Full step increment will be awarded to eligible LINCC Lecturers for the 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 contract years. LINCC Lecturers shall not be eligible for one-time cash bonuses in the 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 contract years.
- 23-2 Increments shall not be automatic after contract expiration.
- A minimum yearly salary increase as the result of a promotion shall be \$150.00 on the base salary beyond what said faculty member would have received had he/she not been promoted.
- 23-4 Lag payroll
- Lag payroll monies withheld in Spring 1992 shall be paid to the employees at retirement or separation from the College at the salary rate then in effect.
- During the 2014-2015 contract year, 1/52nd of each unit member's annual salary will be withheld by the College. Said sum shall be deducted from each unit member in five separate installments (from five separate paychecks) during the 2014-2015 contract year. Lag payroll monies withheld during the 2014-2015 contract year shall be paid to unit members at retirement or separation from the College at the salary rate then in effect. This provision shall not be applicable to LINCC Lecturers.
- During the 2015-2016 contract year, 1/52nd of each unit member's annual salary will be withheld by the College. Said sum shall be deducted from each unit member in five separate installments (from five separate paychecks) during the 2015-2016 contract year. Lag payroll monies withheld during the 2015-2016 contract year shall be paid to unit members at

retirement or separation from the College at the salary rate then in effect. This provision shall not be applicable to LINCC Lecturers.

23-5 **Longevity** - September 1, 2008, unit members who on September 1 of each academic year have been employed by the College for twenty-five years or more and are not eligible for step increase will receive a longevity award of \$2,000.00. Such award shall be paid to eligible unit members during the fall semester of the academic year in which they are eligible. Said award shall be continued in each year of the contract on a non-cumulative basis.

SECTION 24 SICK LEAVE

- Sick leave with pay will accumulate at the rate of one-half (½) day for each bi-weekly period up to a maximum accumulation of 200 days for classroom faculty; however only 180 such days may be used for cash out purposes pursuant to Section 44 of this Agreement. Sick leave with pay will accumulate at the rate of one-half (½) day for each bi-weekly period up to a maximum accumulation of 220 days for non-classroom and professional faculty; however only 200 such days may be used for cash out purposes pursuant to Section 44 of this Agreement. (Note: LINCC Lecturers are not entitled to cash out accumulated sick days pursuant to Section 44.)
- The accumulation begins with the first day of employment at the College.
- In the case of absence of classroom faculty due to illness or pregnancy, classes will be covered by a non-paid substitute or by a paid substitute. The cancellation of classes due to classroom faculty absence should only occur if a substitute cannot be obtained. If class is cancelled or covered by a paid substitute, sick leave will be charged. (See Appendix 2) If class is covered by a non-paid substitute, sick leave will not be charged. The paid substitute rate shall be \$60.00 per contact hour.
- Classes covered by a full-time teaching faculty member for an absent member shall be wholly voluntary and only during periods outside the teaching schedule and posted office hours of said individual. No one shall be penalized for refusing to cover another faculty member's class.
- If the College decides to utilize a substitute for non-classroom or professional faculty, payment shall be at the current agreed overtime rate.
- 24-6.1 Unit members may volunteer to transfer sick leave days to another unit member who has exhausted their total accumulation of sick leave. Donated sick leave days will be utilized in the

- same manner as those sick days accrued by a faculty member. In order to receive pay for the fifth day of a given week, a classroom faculty member must have four (4) donated days applied during said week.
- Any sick leave which is transferred to but not utilized by the unit member receiving such days shall be returned to the unit member who voluntarily initiated the transfer.
- During the course of using donated sick time, the unit member who received the transferred time shall not accrue sick leave benefits until said unit member returns to work.
- 24-6.4 Unit members shall be limited to receiving a maximum of one continuous year of donated sick leave time.
- Classroom faculty will not be required to use donated leave for periods when classes are not in session, however the member is still considered as being on donated leave during these periods. This time will be included in the continuous year of donated sick leave time noted in Section 24-6.4 until such time that the member returns to work.

SECTION 25 SUPPLEMENTAL SICK LEAVE

Supplemental sick leave may be granted, at the request of the faculty member at the discretion of the President, to a faculty member who has used up all of his/her sick leave, vacation time, personal leave and compensatory time, and is still too ill to work as evidenced by a certificate of a doctor. A faculty member granted supplemental sick leave shall receive one-half (1/2) the compensation that he/she would have been paid had he/she continued to serve in the position he/she had at the time such leave was authorized. The amount of supplemental sick leave shall not exceed a period equal to two (2) biweekly pay periods for each year of actual completed service.

SECTION 26 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE

Normally in cases of catastrophic illness, the President may elect to extend the benefit (Supplemental Leave) to all faculty for a period not to exceed six (6) months. However, based upon exigent circumstances, he/she may in his/her discretion exceed said period. The decision of the President shall not be grievable.

SECTION 27 VERIFICATION OF ILLNESS

- 27-1 The following medical verification process shall apply when:
 - a) a unit member's utilization of sick leave has demonstrated a pattern of abuse over time, and such unit member has requested

- the use of additional sick/supplemental/ and/or catastrophic leave provided for in Sections 24, 25 and 26; or
- b) a unit member has at least twenty (20) consecutive absences due to illness.
- Upon the written request of the College, the unit member shall provide the College President written medical documentation from an appropriate specialist included within the unit member's participatory health care provider's network substantiating the unit member's request for use of additional sick/supplemental/and/or catastrophic leave provided for in Sections 24, 25, and 26.
- If the College President determines that the medical documentation provided by the unit member pursuant to subsection 2 is insufficient, the College President may then require the unit member to submit to a medical examination by an appropriate physician appointed by the College for such purpose. The person appointed by the College shall be selected from the unit member's participatory health care provider's network and the examination shall be conducted at the expense of the College. The findings and recommendations based on such examination shall be reported in writing to the President and faculty member.
- In the event that the documentation provided by the unit member and the specialist appointed by the College are contradictory and either party wishes to pursue the matter, a third examination shall be conducted by another physician selected by the two previous health care providers. Such physician shall be selected from the unit member's participatory health care provider's network, the examination shall be conducted at the expense of the College, and shall be the final determination.

27-5 Examination for mental fitness for duty:

When the College has reasonable suspicion that a unit member is mentally unfit for duty, upon ten (10) days written direction, only the College President may require the unit member to submit to an examination by an appropriate physician or clinical psychologist selected from the unit member's participatory health care provider's network establishing the unit member's mental fitness for duties. The reasons for such request shall be provided to the unit member in writing at the time of said direction. Any unit member required to submit to examination of mental fitness shall be entitled to accompanied by a physician or other person of his or her choice. Thereafter, following issuance of the examination report, a copy of which shall be provided to the unit member, the unit member may provide the College President with written documentation from an appropriate physician or clinical psychologist included within the unit member's participatory health care provider's network substantiating the unit member's mental fitness for duty. In the event that the documentation provided by the unit member and the specialist appointed by the College are contradictory and either party wishes to pursue the matter, a third examination shall be conducted by another physician or clinical psychologist selected by the two previous health care providers. Such physician or clinical psychologist shall be selected from the unit member's participatory health care provider's network, the examination shall be conducted at the expense of the College, and shall be the final determination. The foregoing process shall not be used in an arbitrary or discriminatory manner, nor shall it be used to violate the unit member's right to academic freedom.

SECTION 28 SABBATICAL LEAVE

Sabbatical leaves are awards made by the Board of Trustees to those eligible members of the faculty who propose projects to be carried out on released time, i.e., activities relevant to their discipline, which will enhance their professional competence and will enrich their teaching and/or service to the institution upon their return to the College. Sabbatical leave may be granted for one or more of the following: graduate study, study for professional enrichment, research and/or travel in relevant fields, writing or other experience of professional merit.

28-2 The number of sabbaticals to be granted each year shall be:

2013-14	10 full year at half (1/2) pay
	14 half $(1/2)$ year at full pay
2014-15	10 full year at half (1/2) pay
	14 half (1/2) year at full pay
2015-16	10 full year at half $(1/2)$ pay
	14 half $(1/2)$ year at full pay
2016-17	10 full year at half (1/2) pay
	14 half $(1/2)$ year at full pay
2017-18	10 full year at half (1/2) pay
	14 half (1/2) year at full pay

- 28-3 Sabbaticals approved in the 2016-2017 academic year shall take effect during 2017-2018 and shall be covered by the provisions of this contract.
- Eligibility shall be limited to those faculty members who have tenure and who have completed at least six (6) consecutive years of service within the College from the date of their full-time professional appointment or the expiration of the academic year of their previous sabbatical leave. Periods of leave of absence

other than sick leave with salary and periods of part time service are not included but are not deemed interruptions of otherwise consecutive service.

- Individuals approved for sabbatical leave will receive half (1/2) salary for the full contract year or full salary for half a contract year. A sabbatical leave is not deemed an interruption of otherwise consecutive service. Faculty members on sabbatical leave cannot accept assignments at other academic institutions. In the case of assignments at foreign universities or other academic institutions offering unusual experiences, an exception may be made with the approval of the Sabbatical Leave Committee and the President. There shall be no fixed quotas by department.
- Applications for sabbatical leave shall be submitted to the department Personnel & Budget Committee through its Chairperson or appropriate Dean or Director for review and recommendation and then forwarded to the Sabbatical Leave Committee on December 1st (or the next business day if the 1st falls on a weekend or a College holiday) of the year preceding the academic year in which the sabbatical leave is desired. Each application shall include a prospectus of the intended activity and should state the applicant's intention to continue as a member of the faculty for a minimum period of one (1) year after the expiration of the leave, and his/her agreement to submit a written report of his/her activity to his/her department upon return.
- The applicant shall normally be notified by February 1st of the academic year preceding his/her sabbatical leave of the Committee's action.
- If the Board of Trustees shall fail to grant a sabbatical leave to a faculty member recommended for such leave by the Sabbatical Leave Committee, they should do so only for compelling reasons which shall be communicated to the applicant in writing. Such refusal shall constitute grounds for appropriate grievance.
- In no case shall a sabbatical leave be granted to a faculty member who has not been recommended by the Sabbatical Committee even though the quota may not be filled. If the denial of leave is sustained, the sabbatical leave shall go to the highest ranked alternate.

SECTION 29 PERSONAL LEAVE/CLASSROOM FACULTY

Each member of the classroom faculty will be granted a maximum of four (4) days annually for personal and/or professional reasons. These will be subtracted from sick leave only when utilized. In the case of classroom faculty, class

coverage will be in accordance with the stipulations under sick leave.

In those cases where faculty attend professional meetings at the request of the College Administration or as a result of a subpoena issued in a court proceeding or by an agency created by the government or the courts in a suit against the College by a third party, no leave time will be charged.

SECTION 30 PROFESSIONAL AND MILITARY LEAVES

- Professional leave is a leave of absence without pay to study, conduct research and travel where travel is necessary to effectuate said research and study in furtherance of their professional competence or to hold a temporary appointment.
- The appropriate Dean or Vice President, with the approval of the President, may grant such a leave. No benefits of any nature including but not limited to tenure, promotion, health insurance, sabbaticals, and salary increments will be paid or accrued during said leave. Faculty members may maintain health insurance at their own cost; classroom faculty shall pay one half (1/2) the annual cost per semester. However, such leave will not be considered an interruption of otherwise consecutive service.
- In the event a professional leave is granted to accept an educational grant funded by a non-profit organization and/or a government agency, then the above mentioned benefits, except time for tenure, shall continue to accrue to the faculty member. Military service leaves shall be granted as provided by law.

SECTION 31 PARENTAL LEAVE

- 31-1 Specific leaves for the purpose of childcare shall be granted to a member of the faculty upon notification to the President and application for such leave, provided the applicant has legal responsibility for the care and/or support of said child.
- The duration of such leave shall ordinarily be for no more than one (1) year. An extension of such leave shall be permitted on request for a period not in excess of one (1) year from the end of the original leave upon the recommendation of the President and the approval of the Board of Trustees. Leaves for the purpose of caring for a child shall be granted without pay.
- Where the service of a member of the faculty is interrupted by reason of absence on a leave for the purpose of caring for a child, the period of creditable service preceding such absence shall be counted in computing the years of service required for tenure, promotion, sabbatical, and seniority.
- For the purpose of child care, a non-classroom and

professional faculty member may choose and be granted by the Supervising Administrator a reduced work load, not to exceed fifty percent (50%), with a pro-rated reduction in pay for one semester. This reduction in workload will not affect any benefits the faculty member is entitled to as a full-time employee.

SECTION 32 COLLEGE BUSINESS

- In those cases where faculty members are formally requested in writing by the appropriate Dean or Supervising Administrator to:
- 32-1.1 Attend professional meetings; or
- Participate in a court proceeding as a result of a subpoena issued by a court, or by any agency created by the government of the County, in a suit against the College by a third party; or
- Participate in out-of-classroom activities which are directly related to classroom instruction, and which are funded by the College's operating budget, the faculty member will be deemed to be on College business, and no leave time will be charged for such attendance or participation.
- With the approval of the Administration, coaches may convert more than four (4) sick days into personal days for the purpose of coaching teams at away games.
- This benefit will also apply in cases where the request is initiated by a faculty member via the applicable departmental procedures, and is formally approved in writing by the appropriate Dean or Supervising Administrator.

SECTION 33 HOLIDAYS

- The number and names of the holidays for members of the faculty will vary from year to year, depending on the Administrative and Academic Calendars.
- The Academic Calendar shall be published and shall indicate College holidays as well as the winter and spring recesses for the teaching members of the faculty.
- Non-classroom and professional faculty will have the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.
- There will be five (5) additional paid holidays to be announced by the President at the start of each work year. These holidays will provide the necessary flexibility to relate the Administrative Calendar to the Academic Calendar.

SECTION 34 VACATIONS - NON-CLASSROOM AND PROFESSIONAL FACULTY

- All non-classroom and professional faculty members will be entitled to thirty-six (36) working days vacation; however only twenty-six (26) days may be used for cash out purposes pursuant to Section 44 of this Agreement.
- Vacations are based on the work year. Employees starting after September 1st are entitled to a reduced vacation on a pro-rated basis. Similarly, vacation leave shall be pro-rated if the faculty member terminates employment before the end of the academic year. Vacation may be accrued up to 100 days; however only 90 days may be used for cash out purposes pursuant to Section 44 of this Agreement.
- Vacations must be scheduled to minimize departmental interruptions. Non-classroom and professional faculty holding student-related positions should schedule vacations and personal leaves to coincide with academic holidays or during periods of reduced student activity. All vacations are subject to approval of the supervising administrators.

SECTION 35 JURY DUTY

Jury duty and all court time on County business shall be paid on the basis of a normal work week. Faculty members shall remit to the County all sums received for jury duty beyond two weeks of such service. Upon presentation of an official jury notice to the department Chairperson or Supervisor, faculty shall be allowed to serve on a jury with no charge to their accumulated leave time.

SECTION 36 HEALTH INSURANCE

- 36-1 Contribution to Health Insurance Costs
- Required Contribution for Unit Members Hired Prior to May 1, 2014: The County shall fully pay the health insurance premiums of active and retiring employees electing plans under Article XI of the New York State Civil Service Law. Those employees electing to remain with a HMO will be allowed to do so; however, they must bear the cost difference between the HMO premiums and the highest of the premiums paid under Article XI of the New York State Civil Service Law. This difference will be taken as a payroll deduction.
- 36-1.2 Required Contribution for Unit Members Hired On or After May 1, 2014: Such unit members shall be entitled to receive health insurance benefits as provided for by the Empire

Plan with Core Plus as is received by unit members hired prior to May 1, 2014 (hereafter, "The Empire Plan"), as provided for and to the extent made available by the New York State Health Insurance Program ("NYSHIP"), or an alternative health insurance plan as described below:

- i. If enrolled with The Empire Plan, the unit member shall contribute 10% of the cost of the health insurance premium during the 2014-15 year, which shall increase to 12.5% during the 2015-16 calendar year and thereafter to 15% during the 2016-17 year.
- If enrolled with an alternative health insurance plan (which shall include, but not be limited to, any offered plan of HIP, AETNA, Blue Cross HMO, and HIP / VYTRA Network), the College shall pay, towards the cost of the premium in either the individual or family plan, all amounts up to the monetary equivalent of 90% of the cost of The Empire Plan (individual or family, as appropriate) during the 2014-15 calendar year; 87.5% during the 2015-16 calendar year; and 85% during the 2016-17 calendar year. To the extent the annual premium cost is equal to or less than the above percentage amounts of the cost of The Empire Plan, the employer shall pay the full cost of the health insurance To the extent the annual premium exceeds the above percentage amounts of the cost of The Empire Plan, the unit member shall pay the difference.
- iii. It is the intent of the parties that unit members hired on or after May 1, 2014 shall be offered a health insurance plan option that requires no premium contribution. The parties further acknowledge that such an option may provide benefits and benefit levels different than those currently available. To this end, the College through the County of Nassau shall endeavor to identify and make available for such unit members an alternative plan(s) whose premium cost is equal to or less than the above percentage amounts of the cost of The Empire Plan as soon as practicable. The parties acknowledge that this may result in unit members hired on or after May 1, 2014 being enrolled in a plan which requires a contribution for a period of time.
- iv. The College shall establish and maintain a cafeteria plan whereby all unit members who are hired on or after May 1, 2014 who are required to contribute toward the cost of their health insurance premium (by enrollment in either The Empire Plan or an alternative plan) shall be entitled to pay their health plan premium deductions on a pre-tax basis.
- 36-2 In the event that during the term of this Agreement, any other

County bargaining unit negotiates any improvement in the current health plan which shall be effective during the term of this contract, then this Agreement shall be reopened to negotiate with respect to such improvement in the health plan.

- If a National Health Insurance Plan is enacted and mandated by the Federal Government to cover members of the negotiating unit or if said plan is optional and adopted by the Nassau County Legislature, then members of the negotiating unit shall receive said benefits; however, if said benefits are less than benefits previously received under this contract by members of the negotiating unit, the County shall furnish additional benefits comparable to those omitted in the Federal Plan that were previously enjoyed under contract.
- In the event that any health plan offered under the New York State Civil Service Law is terminated, the parties will reopen negotiations with respect to the issue of any increased cost for comparable health insurance benefits.
- 36-5 If the cost of health insurance premiums increases after the expiration of this contract and prior to the effective date provided for in a successor agreement, employees shall pay for any such increases through payroll deductions during the interim period.
- The County shall have the right to change health insurance providers without further bargaining so long as benefits are not decreased.
- 36-7 Effective September 1, 2009, the Board of Trustees will elect Domestic Partner coverage under the New York State Employees Health Insurance Benefit Program. Domestic partner coverage will be offered to domestic partners in accordance with the applicable rules of the New York State Employees Health Insurance Benefit Program.
- Effective September 1, 2009, unit members shall not be 36-8 provided coverage under the County of Nassau health insurance plan if their spouse, or recognized domestic partner, (1) is employed by the College or the County of Nassau; and (2) has family coverage under the County of Nassau health insurance plan. The couple will decide who will decline coverage. If the circumstance is such that two unit members are married or engaged in a recognized domestic partnership and cannot agree upon who will decline coverage, then the bargaining unit member who declines coverage shall be determined in accordance with applicable NYSHIP rule(s). In the circumstance of a marriage or recognized domestic partnership between a unit member and an employee of the County of Nassau, when the couple cannot agree the unit member shall decline coverage. The College shall provide any

unit member who must decline coverage in accordance with this provision with a buyback in the amount of \$2,000.00. Further, if the unit member or his or her spouse or recognized domestic partner incurs any out of pocket costs in excess of the value of the buyback which the unit member or his or her spouse or recognized domestic partner would not have incurred had the unit member not declined coverage, the County of Nassau shall reimburse the unit member for such costs. Alternatively, the County of Nassau, after considering the recommendation of the College President or his designee, may elect to waive the applicability of this provision if it anticipates that reimbursement of out of pocket costs would be economically disadvantageous for the County.

The foregoing shall not apply to those unit members who are married to another unit member as of May 14, 2009 and who are enrolled along with their spouse in dual family coverage. One of the two family coverages will be converted to individual coverage. The couple will decide who will be reduced to individual coverage. If agreement cannot be reached then the reduction to individual coverage shall be determined in accordance with applicable NYSHIP rule(s). This exception shall be limited only to those unit members who are married to another unit member as of May 14, 2009 and who are enrolled along with their spouse in dual family coverage.

SECTION 37 OPTICAL PLAN

- 37-1 The County shall pay up to, but no more than \$115.00 toward a County selected Optical Plan for all full-time faculty and the plan shall provide for both family coverage and domestic partner coverage.
- There shall be a two (2) month waiting period before new employees shall be eligible for coverage.
- Nothing herein shall be construed to confer any obligation by the County to pay premiums for any optical plan for any retired or retiring employees.
- The County reserves the right, at any time, to change optical plan providers so long as there is no decrease in the benefit levels. Before making such change, the County shall notify and accept comments from the Union.

SECTION 38 DENTAL PLAN

38-1 The County will contribute \$574 annually per employee pro-

- rated on a monthly basis toward the cost of the dental insurance plan chosen by the employee group.
- Should dividends accrue from the dental plan purchased by the NCCFT, such dividends will be remitted to the County. The County shall have such auditing rights as are necessary to enforce this clause. The NCCFT shall not decrease its deductible, nor increase any benefit level more than 20 percent (20%) over the life of this Agreement.
- There shall be a two (2) month waiting period before new employees shall be eligible for dental coverage.

SECTION 39 LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE

The County will provide a check-off for the payment of premiums for group life and disability insurance plans that are to be selected and completely paid for by the employees. If life insurance benefits are granted to any other County bargaining unit during the term of this Agreement, then and in that event, this Agreement shall be re-opened to negotiate with respect to said life insurance benefits for all employees covered under this Agreement.

SECTION 40 DEATH BENEFIT

The estate of a deceased employee of the faculty shall be entitled to be paid for all unused accumulated vacation time, sick leave, and compensatory time at his or her pro-rate prevailing rate of pay. However, if the faculty member has filed a "Designation of Beneficiary With Contingent Beneficiary" with the retirement system, such sum shall be paid to the beneficiary therein designated.

SECTION 41 ACCIDENTAL INJURY DEATH BENEFIT

For death due to accidental injury on the job, a member of the faculty shall receive the sum of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000.00) in addition to other due entitlements under this contract. Such sum shall be paid to the estate of the employee; however, if the employee has filed a "Designation of Beneficiary with Contingent Beneficiary" with the retirement system, such sum shall be paid to the beneficiary therein designated.

SECTION 42 MILEAGE ALLOWANCE

- Faculty required to use their private automobiles for offcampus College business will be compensated at the rate permitted under IRS regulations in accordance with the mileage distance as determined by the County Comptroller.
- 42-2 Authorization to use a private vehicle for College business must be obtained in advance from the office of the Vice

President for Administration.

In the event the County increases the mileage allowance for any employee group, then this contract shall be deemed modified to reflect said increase.

SECTION 43 ACADEMIC REGALIA

- As the College requires faculty to wear academic regalia (cap, gown, and hood) to certain College functions, the College will assist in the procurement of this regalia as follows:
- 43-1.1 It will be the individual's responsibility to purchase the required regalia. The College will reimburse the individual for the purchase of this regalia as follows:
 - a) Regalia for an Associate, Bachelor or Master degree, \$75.
 - b) Regalia for a Doctoral degree, \$150.
- The College will reimburse the individual once for each degree level acquired.
- In order for the faculty member to be reimbursed, he/she must present a copy of the paid bill enumerating the purchase of the regalia with a Nassau County claim form to the Accounts Payable section of the College's Procurement Department. The regalia is then the permanent property of the faculty member. Regalia already provided to present faculty members may be retained by them, and no additional reimbursement will be made to them unless they achieve a higher level degree.

SECTION 44 TERMINATION PAY

The classroom faculty member or his/her legal representative upon termination of service shall receive a cash payment for the monetary value of his/her accumulated but unused sick leave at the time of such termination as follows:

YEARS OF SERVICE % OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE

LESS THAN 15 YEARS	50%
15-19 YEARS	75%
20 OR MORE YEARS	100%

A non-classroom or professional faculty member or his/her legal representative, upon termination of service shall receive a cash payment for the monetary value of his/her accumulated but unused vacation time plus a percentage of his/her sick time accumulated but unused at the time of such termination as follows:

YEARS OF SERVICE % OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE

LESS THAN 15 YEARS	50%
15-19 YEARS	75%
20 OR MORE YEARS	100%

44-3 Unused Accumulated Vacation Time

- In the event that the faculty member is unable to utilize the 26 vacation days for his/her last year of employment prior to retirement because of the "press of business responsibilities", the faculty member will be paid for more than 90 days (maximum 116 days) if the following conditions are met:
 - a) The faculty member must attempt to use the current year's 26 days and must maintain a record of vacation requests and disapproval of same; and
 - b) The faculty member's immediate supervisor must certify that the days could not be used because of work-related needs.

SECTION 45 RETIREMENT PLANS

- Full-time faculty are required to select one of the following retirement plans that are available to them:

 Optional Retirement Program, New York State Teachers' Retirement System, or New York State Employees' Retirement System.
- 45-2 Mandatory retirement shall be governed by the law and the regulations of the relevant retirement system.
- Requests to hire a NY State Public Employee (form UP-211) may be signed by the College President in rare and unusual circumstances when a department is unable to find other qualified candidates. The requests will be sent to the Chancellor of SUNY for approval. There is no appeal of the President's decision.
- 45-3.1 At the time of a faculty member's initial appointment, should a UP-211 request be signed by the President and approved by the Chancellor for the maximum of two years at a time, the College agrees to continue to request SUNY approval each two years as long as the faculty member requires the approval, so that there is no loss of pension benefits.
- Unit members shall provide the College within sixty (60) days written notice of intention to resign for purposes of retirement. However, in the event of a major life event the sixty (60) day requirement shall be waived at the request of the unit member.

SECTION 46 EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE

46-1 For a faculty member who will reach his/her fifty-seventh

(57th) birthday, and who will have completed ten (10) or more years of full-time service as a member of the full-time faculty at Nassau Community College, the enrollment period for the election of the early retirement incentive is from the date of said birthday for the remainder of that calendar year until December 31.

- Failure to elect to retire early during the time periods specified above will preclude any faculty member from obtaining this benefit for the life of the Agreement.
- This benefit is not available to faculty members who elect an early retirement incentive under the terms of any other retirement system or TIAA/CREF or Optional Retirement Program.
- Incentive: An eligible faculty member will receive ninety percent (90%) of the final year's salary.
- For purposes of this section only, "final year's salary" will be defined as the base annual salary for the faculty member, excluding advanced study differential, overtime, termination pay, and any other compensation additional to the base annual salary.
- Payment of this early retirement incentive will be made in equal annual installments over the course of a five-year period, without interest. Upon early retirement under Section 46-1, the President of the College shall decide at the request of the faculty member and based upon the circumstances in each case, whether an employee shall receive a lump sum cash payment of this incentive. Should death occur during this payment period, the remainder due from the incentive will be paid to the estate of the deceased upon just demand.

SECTION 47 SPECIAL RETIREMENT INCENTIVE TERMINATING DECEMBER 31, 2015

47-1

a. Any unit member who is age 55 or older as of the retirement dates described in this section and who will have completed 10 or more years of continuous full-time service as a member of the full-time faculty of Nassau Community College as of either September 1, 2015, or December 31, 2015 and who submits his/her resignation for purposes of retirement under the Teachers Retirement System of New York State, or the Employee Retirement System of New York State, or TIAA/CREF, or Optional Retirement Program, together with his/her irrevocable election of this early retirement incentive on or before June 30, 2015 for a retirement date of August 31, 2015, or October 31, 2015 for a retirement date of December

31, 2015 will receive forty percent (40%) of his/her final year's salary in a lump sum cash payment at the time of retirement. The foregoing dates shall not be required if a unit member retires as a result of a terminal or chronically disabling illness. In such event the unit member may receive the benefit upon resignation at any time between contract ratification and December 31, 2015.

For the purposes of this Special Retirement Incentive Plan only, this early retirement incentive's "final year's salary" will be defined as the base annual salary for the faculty member, excluding overtime, termination pay, and any other compensation additional to the base annual salary.

In addition to the foregoing, participants in this Special Retirement Incentive Plan shall be granted an individual agreement providing that during retirement they shall not be required in the future to contribute to the premium cost of health care under the then provided health care plan applicable to the retiree.

b. This Special Retirement Incentive Plan Section 47 shall expire and be of no further force and effect on January 1, 2016, except for enforcement of the payments to be made hereunder. The NCCFT herewith expressly waives the applicability of Section 209-a (1) (e) of the Taylor Law to the entirety of the provisions of this early retirement incentive plan.

The benefits described herein are not available to faculty members who elect an early retirement incentive under the terms of any other retirement system or TIAA/CREF or Optional Retirement Program.

SECTION 48 DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

A faculty member who resigns from the College or who is terminated for other than budgetary reasons and subsequently is re-employed by the College shall not be deemed to have continuous employment. Such faculty member shall measure his/her seniority from the date of re-employment.

SECTION 49 TERMINATION FOR FINANCIAL REASONS

49-1 If the services of a faculty member shall be terminated for budgetary reasons, notice of termination shall be given to the faculty member as follows:

- 49-1.1 If the termination is mandated or dictated by State limitation of available funds, notice will be given as soon as that limitation becomes effective and shall take effect at the end of the school year or such later date as may be required.
- 49-1.2 If the termination results from a limitation of funds dictated by the County, then at least one calendar year's notice will be given before a dismissal.
- These rules shall apply to both tenured and non-tenured faculty.
- 48-1.4 If a faculty member is terminated for the above reasons before the end of the period of appointment because of a financial exigency or because of the discontinuance or reduction of a program of instruction, the released faculty member's place will not be filled by a replacement within a period of two (2) years unless the released faculty member has been offered reappointment and a reasonable time within which to accept or decline. If a faculty member is reappointed under this provision, his/her service shall be deemed continuous.
- 49-1.5 In the event of the above, the reduction of the faculty shall be on the following basis:
 - a) Reduction shall take place first among adjunct faculty members, then non-tenured faculty members, and finally tenured members in the department affected (subject to provisions of Notice of Non-Reappointment). If two or more persons have the same seniority, decision as to who shall be dropped will be based upon worth determined by procedures set forth by the Department P&B Committee within the guidelines developed by the Union and the Administration.
 - b) Faculty members who were employed by the College prior to the creation of a department shall have their seniority assured on a College-wide basis. Conflicts of seniority among faculty members with the same commencement date of full-time employment in the department shall be resolved by earlier dates of full-time employment at the College, part time employment at the College, or date of letter of appointment to the College, in that order. Every reasonable effort shall be made to offer the faculty member employment in another program in which the faculty member is presently qualified. Application for sabbatical leave for the purpose of retraining shall be considered by the Sabbatical Leave Committee.

SECTION 50 APPOINTMENT POLICY FACULTY AND ADMINISTRATION

When a vacancy for a faculty position occurs in any department, except as noted in Section 49-1, the members of

the Personnel and Budget Committee and the Chairperson of that Department (in case of non-academic department, the supervising administrator or his/her appointed representative) shall constitute the Selection Committee for the purpose of reviewing applications and credentials. interviewing candidates, and making recommendations to the appropriate Dean. The P&B Committee shall forward the names of three recommended candidates, in rank order, to the appropriate Dean for review. If a search does not result in three successful candidates, the President may waive the requirement for three candidates. The Dean shall interview and select a candidate from this list. If the Dean does not select the Department's first preference, the Dean shall meet with the Department to explain his/her reasons.

- When a vacancy for a position occurs in any area that reports to the Vice President for Academic/Student Services, the members of the Personnel and Budget Committee and the Chair of the Department shall constitute the Selection Committee.
 - In the Department of Student Personnel Services, the members of the P&B Committee shall constitute the Selection Committee.
 - a) In areas that report to the Vice President for Academic/Student Affairs, that do not have chairpersons or P&B Committees, the Selection Committee shall consist of the director of the area and representatives designated by the Vice President.
- The Selection Committee's purpose shall be to review applications and credentials, interview candidates, and make recommendations to the Vice President or his/her designee. The Selection Committee shall forward the names of the three recommended candidates to the Vice President or his/her designee for review.
- The Vice President for Academic/Student Affairs or his/her designee shall interview and select a candidate from this list. If the Vice President or his/her designee does not select the Department's first preference, the Vice President or his/her designee shall meet with the Department to explain his/her reason.
- If none of these candidates is found acceptable, compelling reasons for this decision shall be communicated in writing to the P&B Committee. If consultation with the P&B Committee does not resolve the matter, it may be subject to the appropriate grievance procedures. A new search cannot be initiated unless there is agreement with the Department or resolution by grievance. In no case shall anyone be appointed to fill a vacancy who has not received a favorable

recommendation from the departmental Selection Committee. Upon positive referral, the successful candidate shall be appointed by the President.

- Current full-time temporaries, who received their appointment as a result of approved search procedures, shall, on the recommendation of the P&B Committee, be appointed to the first available vacancy.
- A member of the faculty with a formal academic rank or a member of the professional faculty who leaves the faculty ranks to take a twelve (12) month position within the Administration shall have priority in filling an appropriate vacancy when returning to the department from which he/she came. The department Chairperson and/or the Personnel and Budget Committee may reject the appointment only on the grounds of lack of professional qualification. This rejection may be subject to the appropriate grievance procedure. He/she shall be placed in the first available appropriate opening in the department.
- His/her position as to academic rank, professional title, tenure, and department seniority will be the same as the day he/she left the academic department or professional unit. Upon returning to the academic department or professional unit, he/she shall assume the step he/she would have had if the faculty member had not left the department or unit. Seniority does not accrue when a faculty member is out of the department.
- A faculty member who has achieved tenure in one department and becomes a member of another department must apply for tenure when his/her probationary period is completed. If tenure is not granted, that person returns to the department where tenure is held under the terms and conditions stated in the contract. If tenure is granted in a new department, then tenure in the previous department must be forfeited.
- Time in rank of a member of the faculty who has moved from one department to another may be used for purposes of promotion. However, honorary rank achieved does not count for promotion.
- In those cases where an Administrative Assistant (AA), Technical Assistant (TA), or Technologist is appointed to a classroom faculty position, the individual so appointed shall be given the title and rank of Instructor. The salary shall be fixed as follows:
 - a) Where the salary as an Administrative Assistant, Technical Assistant, or Technologist lies between Step 1 and Step 16 of the Instructor rank, the AA, TA, or Technologist shall be placed on the instructor step that most closely equals the salary

- he/she would have received as an AA, TA, or Technologist.
- b) Where the salary as an Administrative Assistant, Technical Assistant, or Technologist is greater than Step 16 of the Instructor scale, the AA, TA, or Technologist shall be placed at Step 16 of the Instructor scale.
- c) Where the salary as an Administrative Assistant, Technical Assistant, or Technologist is less than Step 1 of the Instructor scale, the AA, TA, or Technologist shall be placed at Step 1 of the Instructor scale.
- Administrative Assistants, Technical Assistants, or Technologists who are tenured and who are appointed to classroom faculty positions will maintain tenure as AA's, TA's, or Technologists but will begin a new probationary period for tenure and promotion as classroom faculty. A Professional Development Plan will be required. In the event an AA, TA, or Technologist is granted tenure as a classroom faculty, he/she will relinquish the tenure held as a TA, AA, or Technologist. If tenure is not granted as a classroom faculty, the TA, AA, or Technologist will revert to the tenured position previously held.
- 50-7.2 In those cases where a non-classroom instructional faculty member is appointed to a classroom instructional faculty position, the individual so appointed shall retain the title and rank achieved while a member of the non-classroom faculty. In order to apply for promotion, the contractually specified time in rank must be served as a member of the classroom All non-classroom instructional faculty members appointed to a classroom position will begin a new probationary period for tenure as classroom faculty. Professional Development Plan will be required. In the event that a faculty member has previously been granted tenure as non-classroom faculty, the non-classroom faculty member appointed to a classroom position will maintain tenure as nonclassroom faculty. Should the individual be granted tenure as classroom faculty, he/she will relinquish the tenure held as non-classroom faculty. If tenure is not granted as classroom faculty, the individual will revert to the tenured position previously held.
- through 50-7 do not apply to LINCC Lecturers. The LINCC Coordinator and the LINCC Advisory Committee shall constitute the Selection Committee for the purpose of reviewing applications and credentials, interviewing candidates and making recommendations to the appropriate supervising administrator. The Advisory Committee shall forward the names of three recommended candidates, in rank

order, to the appropriate supervisor for review. If a search does not result in three successful candidates, the President may waive the requirement for three candidates. The appropriate supervisor shall interview and select a candidate from the list. If the appropriate supervisor does not select the Advisory Committees' first preference, he/she will meet with the LINCC Lecturers and explain his/her reasons.

SECTION 51 REAPPOINTMENT AND NON-REAPPOINTMENT

Nassau Community College subscribes to the Standards for Notice of Non-Reappointment adopted by the American Association of University Professors on April 11, 1964, the text of which follows:

"Notice of Non-Reappointment, or of intention not to recommend reappointment to the governing board, should be given in writing in accordance with the following standards:

- Not later than March 1 of the first academic year of service, if the appointment expires at the end of that year; or, if one year appointment terminates during an academic year, at least three months in advance of its termination.
- Not later than December 15 of the second academic year of service, if the appointment expires at the end of that year; or, if an initial two-year appointment terminates during an academic year, at least six months in advance of its termination. At least twelve months before the expiration of an appointment after two or more years in the institution."
- The initiative for non-reappointment of all faculty normally resides with the departmental Personnel and Budget Committee. In the event of a decision of non-reappointment by the aforementioned, the Personnel and Budget Committee must normally notify the individual concerned thirty (30) days prior to any recommendation made to the Administration. The individual concerned shall have the right to use the prescribed grievance procedure.
- 51-3 All non-tenured faculty shall receive one year renewable contracts until the expiration of their probationary period unless they are not reappointed.
- Should the recommendation for non-reappointment originate outside the department, it must be in writing, indicating reasons for the recommendation and submitted to all parties concerned. The Personnel and Budget Committee will then reevaluate the recommendation and make its position known to the President. The individual concerned shall have the right to

- use the appropriate grievance procedure.
- 51-5 LINCC Lecturer Reappointment and Non-Reappointment: Sections 51-1 through 51-4 do not apply to LINCC Lecturers.
- Non-tenured LINCC Lecturers shall receive one year renewable contracts until the expiration of their probationary period unless they are not reappointed.
- Notice of non-reappointment or intention not to recommend reappointment to the governing board should be given in writing by March 1 of each year until tenure is granted.
- The initiative for non-reappointment of LINCC Lecturers normally resides with the LINCC Advisory Committee. In the event of a decision of non-reappointment by the aforementioned, the LINCC Advisory Committee must normally notify the individual concerned thirty (30) days prior to any recommendation made to the Administration. The individual concerned shall have the right to use the prescribed grievance procedure.
- Should the recommendation for non-reappointment originate outside the department, it must be in writing, indicating reasons for the recommendation and submitted to all parties concerned. The LINCC Advisory Committee will then reevaluate the recommendation and make its position known to the President. The individual concerned shall have the right to use the appropriate grievance procedure.

SECTION 52 PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

- It is expected that all faculty members will conduct themselves according to generally expected standards of conduct and performance. Both the NCCFT and the College recognize the importance of counseling and the principles of corrective discipline. Therefore, it shall be the purpose of the Progressive Disciplinary Process to provide a fair, consistent method of addressing unacceptable and inappropriate behavior by informing the faculty member of unacceptable behavior and/or violations of College policy and procedure and giving faculty the opportunity to remediate unacceptable behavior and/or violation of College policies and procedure in order to eliminate problems as much in advance as possible. This policy will provide for a prompt, equitable and efficient procedure for disciplining and/or counseling a faculty member.
- In applying the procedure herein, the Chair and/or the Dean and/or Supervisor and/or Vice President need to consider the severity of the offense, the previous record of the faculty member, and the length of time between offenses. A faculty member's past record does not have to include a prior offense

of the same type to be issued a warning. A single major incident if adequately serious, can warrant invocation of contract procedures leading to termination. In all stages of this process, the Office of Human Resources may be consulted.

52-2 The Progressive Disciplinary Process:

To insure that the faculty member has the opportunity to discuss deficiencies, to understand where improvement is needed, to know what are the expectations of the Chair and/or the Dean and/or Supervisor and/or Vice President and to have the opportunity to take corrective action, the following procedures should be followed:

- 52-2.1 a) Oral Notification
 - b) Verbal Counseling
- 52-2.2 Written Notice
 - a) Written Counseling
 - b) Written Reprimand
- 52-2.3 Suspension Untenured Employees
 - a) With pay (1-5 Days)
 - b) Without pay (1-10 Days)
- 52-2.4 Suspension Tenured Employees
 - a) With pay (1-5 Days)
 - b) Without pay (1-10 Days)
- 52-2.4.1 The foregoing suspension penalties against tenured employees shall not be imposed until the affected unit member shall have been granted an opportunity to hear the reasons asserted as justification of the penalty before the Chair and/or the Dean and/or Supervisor and/or Vice President imposing the penalty. The affected unit member shall be granted the opportunity to respond and may be represented by the NCCFT at the meeting that the foregoing occurs.
- 52-2.5 Termination
 - a) Non-tenured (refer to Sections 51 and 52.5 of the NCCFT Contract)
 - b) Tenured (refer to Section 53 of the NCCFT Contract-Dismissal of Tenured Faculty)
- 52-3 **Definitions For Progressive Disciplinary Process**
- Oral Notification is normally used by the Chair and/or lowest possible departmental level for unit members without a Dean, for the first minor infraction, to verbally notify the faculty member of unacceptable behavior or unacceptable conduct. This method can be used twice before going on to the next step. An oral warning remains in effect for twelve months.
- 52-3.2 **Written Notification** is normally used by the Chair and/or lowest possible departmental_level for unit members without a Dean for:
- 52-3.2.1 Written Counseling is normally used for unacceptable

behavior or unacceptable conduct; to assist a faculty member in understanding and correcting the behavior, they can be referred to the Employee Assistance Program (EAP). The written counseling notice comes from the Dean or Supervisor and remains in effect for twelve months.

- 52-3.2.2 **Written Reprimand** is normally used as a disciplinary action to inform a faculty member of unacceptable behavior or unacceptable conduct and states that future occurrences are subject to further disciplinary action.
- 52-3.2.3 Written reprimands are normally issued when there is:
 - a) Repeat minor infractions for which the faculty member has previously been orally warned;
 - b) Several minor infractions occurring within a short time, preceded by a minor infraction for which the faculty member has previously been orally warned;
 - c) The first incident of a more serious infraction.
 - (1) The written reprimand comes from the Chair and/or lowest possible departmental level and remains in effect for twelve months
 - (2) Written warning memoranda will be placed in the faculty member's personnel file; the faculty member may respond in writing to the warning memoranda. The written warning (and response) is not subject to the grievance procedure but may be responded to.
 - (3) Written responses will be filed in the personnel file along with the written warning memoranda and remain in effect for twelve months and shall be removed from file if there is no further occurrence.
- Suspension is normally used for the temporary removal, with or without pay, of a faculty member from the performance of his/her duties. Suspensions are normally used for:

 Recurrences of habitual minor infractions or several more serious infractions preceded by an infraction for which the faculty member has recently received oral and/or written warnings; or the first act representing a significant violation
 - that does not warrant the commencement of termination proceedings without the prior benefit of either an oral or written warning.
- Suspensions are imposed by a Dean or Vice President. The decision to suspend can be grieved at Step 3. Documentation of suspension will be in the faculty member's personnel file and remains in effect for twelve months and shall be removed from the file if there is no further occurrence.
- 52-5 **Termination** of employment is the culmination of the progressive disciplinary process. Terminations occur for major infractions or when the progressive measures

hereinbefore set forth have not corrected unacceptable behavior. In the event a decision is made to terminate a faculty member who is non-tenured, Sections 51 and 52-5 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement shall apply. If the faculty member is tenured, the process contained in Section 53 will be used. The Office of Human Resources should be consulted before terminating a faculty member.

SECTION 53 DISMISSAL OF TENURED FACULTY

The College and the NCCFT agree that in all dismissal cases 53-1 involving tenured faculty the bargaining unit member shall be guaranteed the rights and procedures contained in the documents enacted by the American Association of University Professors (AAUP) entitled: the "Statement on Procedural Standards in Faculty Dismissal Proceedings" (1958); the "1940 Statement on Principles on Academic Freedom and Tenure" as amended (1978), and the "Recommended Institutional Regulations of Academic Freedom and Tenure (1982)." (The 1982 document serves as a primary outline for procedure as modified by this Agreement.) It is understood and agreed that the above three documents shall be controlling in tenure dismissal cases except where the rights and procedures contained in these documents are expressly waived or changed in the following paragraphs of this Agreement. It is also understood that the provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement shall be observed and honored in any tenure dismissal hearing. Tenured faculty members shall only be dismissed for adequate and just cause.

53-2 For the purpose of a tenure dismissal hearing, the nine elected faculty members of the College's Promotion and Tenure Committee (P&T) shall serve as the Hearing Committee (Committee). This Committee shall determine if adequate and just cause exists to recommend the dismissal of a faculty member. The two elected faculty alternates may serve as replacements in case of disqualification or resignation of one of the nine elected faculty members. Only the nine elected members of the Committee may vote unless permanently replaced by an alternate. No member of the Committee may be a party to the final recommendation and/or discussions arriving at any recommendation, and/or participate in the process unless he or she was in attendance at all prior meetings. A majority (which must be five votes) of the Committee must agree on the final recommendation and all decisions.

53-3 **INFORMAL PROCEEDINGS**:

- If a recommendation for dismissal emanates from the department Personnel and Budget Committee, the President or his designee shall investigate the charges and shall discuss the matter with the faculty member and the P&B Committee. If within thirty (30) working days there is no mutual resolution, the College, upon the President's recommendation, may begin formal proceedings against the faculty member by issuing a formal finding of probable cause to seek the faculty member's dismissal.
- 53-3.2 If a recommendation for dismissal emanates from outside the department, the President or his designee shall discuss the charges with the faculty member. If, within thirty (30) working days, they cannot agree to a mutual resolution of the matter, the appropriate Dean and/or Vice President shall discuss the matter with the faculty member's department P&B Committee. In case the faculty member is not attached to a department, the discussions will be with the individual's immediate supervisor. The faculty member shall be present at these discussions. The P&B may seek to effect a fair adjustment if possible. If no adjustment is possible, the P&B Committee will so notify the Dean and/or Vice President. The President may begin formal proceedings against the faculty member by issuing a formal finding of probable cause to seek the faculty member's dismissal.
- 53-3.3 The faculty member shall have the right to have a union observer present during any stage of these informal proceedings.
- In both cases, the President shall send to the faculty member the finding of probable cause thereby notifying the faculty member of the charges. The faculty member has a right to a hearing on the charges before the P&T Committee. The hearing shall not be public unless so requested by the faculty member in writing before the hearing commences or on the record during the hearing.

53-4 **FORMAL PROCEEDINGS:**

- After the faculty member has received notice of the specific charges and has requested a hearing, the President shall notify the P&T Committee that a hearing is required. The President's notification to the Hearing Committee shall not contain the specific charges, but only the fact that probable cause has been found and a hearing has been requested. The charges and supporting papers will be submitted to the Committee according to regular Committee procedures.
- The faculty member shall not be suspended from his/her classes or duties before or during the formal proceedings unless justified by the threat of immediate harm to any person.

In no event shall a suspension take place without notification to the faculty member's P&B Committee. Suspension shall be with full salary and benefits.

- The President may withdraw the charges and terminate the matter at any time.
- 53-5 **COMMITTEE PROCEDURE**:
- The Committee, after receiving notification that charges exist and that a faculty member seeks a hearing, shall notify the faculty member, the President, and the NCCFT that a hearing will be conducted at a certain time and place. A representative designated by the NCCFT may be present during the hearings. The President may designate a representative to be present during the hearings. The charges shall be reduced to writing.
- The College and the NCCFT shall select a Committee Arbitrator to assist the Chair with evidentiary rulings and to provide advice to the Committee on all other procedural issues. The Committee Arbitrator, when asked to do so by the Committee Chair, shall make evidentiary rulings on the record arising during any pre-hearing meetings and the hearing itself. The Committee Arbitrator shall be selected from a list of arbitrators provided pursuant to the rules for voluntary labor arbitration of the American Arbitration Association. The Committee Arbitrator shall be selected prior to the commencement of the hearing and shall be an attorney. The cost for the services of the Committee Arbitrator, including expenses, if any, will be assumed by the College.
- The Committee may, with the consent of the parties concerned, hold joint pre-hearing meetings in order to simplify the issues, effect stipulations of facts, provide for exchange of documentary or other information, and achieve such other appropriate pre-hearing objectives as to make the hearing fair, effective and expeditious, or reach settlement.
- 53-5.4 Although the Committee is not expected to follow rules of court procedure, all evidence concerning the case will be duly recorded and the testimony of witnesses will be received under oath of credibility. The record of the hearing shall be made available to the faculty member without cost. The Committee will consider only those charges contained in the President's written statement. The elected Chairperson of the P&T Committee shall, upon the advice and consent of Committee members, make determinations, on the record, as to all evidentiary and procedural matters. The Committee, in accord with the procedures of the AAUP standards referred to above and the NCCFT contract, shall determine the credibility of witnesses and evidence. The Committee shall ask questions through one committee member or the Chair in order to avoid

- undue delay.
- 53-5.5 The Committee will first hear testimony by the College's witnesses as to the specific grounds for the dismissal. The Committee shall have the option of questioning the witnesses and reviewing all documents submitted by the College. The faculty member shall have the opportunity to respond and to be represented by Counsel. The faculty member may call witnesses of his/her own choosing. Both parties shall have the right of cross examination.
- 53-5.6 At the end of the hearing process, the Committee may request oral argument and/or written briefs before making its recommendation. Both the College and the faculty member shall have the right to request oral argument and/or the right to file a written brief. In either case the parties shall be given reasonable time to prepare. The Committee shall meet at the end of all these procedures and discuss the case based upon all the facts in the record and make a written determination as to each specific charge basing its decisions on specific evidentiary and credibility finding with specific reference to the record. The Committee may consult with the Committee Arbitrator only on questions of law during the deliberation process. The Committee shall recommend such differentiated penalties it deems appropriate, including written reprimand, fine, suspension with or without pay, or termination, all with or without appropriate counseling. The Committee shall communicate its findings and recommendations in writing to the President and faculty member.
- The President may withdraw the charges and terminate the matter. Alternatively, he may impose any sanctions the Committee has recommended or impose any sanctions he deems appropriate but must at all times base his decision upon the Committee's finding of fact and credibility upon the record. The faculty member may request a review of any imposed sanctions before the College Board of Trustees.

53-6 **BOARD OF TRUSTEES:**

- The Board may review the sanctions, but must do so upon the Committee's findings of fact and credibility based upon the record. The faculty member and any representative he/she may choose, as well as the Union, may argue orally or may submit written appeals to the Board.
- 53-6.2 If the Board disagrees with the sanctions imposed, it shall send the matter back to the President with its written objections specifically referring to the record. The President will reconsider and issue a decision which shall be final.
- 53-6.3 The burden of proof as to whether adequate and just cause exists to dismiss the faculty member rests with the College and

will be satisfied only by clear and convincing evidence of that fact as contained in the record.

SECTION 54 TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS

- Full-time temporary appointments shall follow the same procedure as full-time permanent appointments even if appointment is made during a semester.
- Temporary appointees are not eligible to serve on departmental Personnel and Budget Committees but may serve the College in every other way.
- The time accrued by faculty on a temporary appointment shall count toward promotion, tenure and sabbatical in the event the temporary full-time faculty member is appointed to a full-time permanent position, if the full-time appointment occurs within one year following the conclusion of the temporary appointment.
- When a member of the classroom faculty takes a leave of absence without pay, the department will not be penalized in terms of the number of hours which can be scheduled in the semester of said leave.
- The hiring of a full-time replacement will be dependent on the actual need of the department, based on registration.

SECTION 55 TENURE POLICY

- After the expiration of a probationary period, tenure shall be granted in accordance with the procedures listed below. After receipt of tenure, a faculty member's service shall be terminated only for adequate cause.
- 55-2 Applications for tenure and promotion to Assistant Professor, and the review procedure for both shall be simultaneous at the P&B and P&T levels. Notification procedure shall follow existing practices for tenure as described above. A recommendation for tenure/promotion to Assistant Professor from the P&B and P&T Committees shall be forwarded to the President for review. An Instructor granted tenure will be simultaneously promoted to Assistant Professor. An Assistant Professor applying for tenure may also apply for promotion; however. the application process, review. recommendations shall be separate and distinct and shall follow the respective deadlines set forth by the P&T Committee and the procedures set forth above.
- For professional faculty and instructional faculty appointed on a twelve-month basis, the probationary period shall be five (5) years within a Department from the date of the initial

professional appointment to that Department. The definition of semester for the sole purpose of eligibility for tenure for faculty appointed on a twelve-month basis shall be:

Fall Semester September 1 up to and including the first

day of the Spring semester.

Spring Semester The day after the start of the Spring semester through August 31.

Applications for tenure and promotion to P-2 and the review procedure for both shall be simultaneous at the P&B Committee/Professional Faculty Unit and the Promotion Committee – provided that the applicant possesses a Bachelors Degree in discipline relevant to the position as required in Section 60-1.

- For LINCC Lecturers the probationary period shall be six (6) years from the date of the lecturer's initial appointment. LINCC Lecturers may apply for tenure and promotion at Step 6. Promotion shall be to LINCC Lecturer II at Step 7. Applications for tenure and promotion to LINCC Lecturer II and the review procedure for both shall be simultaneous.
- Individuals whose initial appointment was for or during a 55-5 spring semester will serve an additional semester of probationary service. By February 1st of each year, the Academic Department Chairperson, or LINCC Coordinator and LINCC Advisory Committee, or Supervising Dean or Director in the case of professional faculty not attached to an academic department, and the Personnel & Budget Committee of each department shall consider those departmental members who are eligible and have applied for tenure and shall submit their recommendations to the Promotion and Tenure Committee. No later than March 1st, the Promotion and Tenure Committee will forward to the President its recommendations. These in turn shall be forwarded by the President to the Board of Trustees for their consideration. The Board of Trustees may, upon recommendation of the President, grant tenure. The President's refusal to recommend or Board of Trustees' refusal to grant tenure, following a favorable recommendation by the Promotion and Tenure Committee, shall only occur in rare instances and for compelling reasons which shall be communicated in writing to the candidate.
- If a faculty member eligible for tenure is not recommended for it by the Promotion and Tenure Committee, then by April 1st of the last year of his/her probationary period, he/she shall be informed in writing by the President of the reasons for not recommending tenure. Non-recommendation for tenure shall constitute grounds for appropriate grievance. When tenure is

not recommended during the last probationary year, the faculty member shall be so notified under the provisions for non-reappointment. Tenure will not be awarded by default. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 19-5.3, an individual faculty member who has not been recommended for tenure shall have the right to utilize all steps of the grievance procedure in Section 19.

Tenure approved in the 2016-2017 academic year shall take effect September 1, 2017 and shall be covered by the provisions of this contract.

SECTION 56 ACADEMIC DEPARTMENTS CREATION/MERGER/SPLITS

- The College Administration shall have the right to split, merge, or create departments consistent with general College policy.
- In the event that a department is split into two or more departments or if two or more departments are merged into one department or a new academic department is created, faculty members concerned who hold tenure and rank shall continue to do so in the one new department. All the time accumulated in the previous department shall accrue for the purpose of tenure, promotion, sabbatical, and seniority.

SECTION 57 PROMOTION POLICY INSTRUCTIONAL FACULTY

- The Administration shall publish the current policy on promotional standards developed by the P&T Committee in conjunction with the P&B Committees and Department Chairpersons. Changes or amendments shall require the approval of both Contract Administrators. Only those faculty who meet the developed standards shall be considered for promotion. There shall be no waiver of these standards.
- 57-2 Eligibility to apply for promotion from Instructor to Assistant Professor shall include a minimum of five (5) years service as an Instructor at the College. No substitute for this time requirement may be granted to classroom faculty. No one on a terminal contract shall be eligible for promotion.
- 57-3 Effective September 1, 2009, eligibility to apply for promotion from Assistant Professor to Associate Professor shall include a minimum of four (4) years as an Assistant Professor at the College.
- 57-4 Effective September 1, 2009, eligibility to apply for promotion from Associate Professor to Professor shall include

- a minimum of five (5) years as an Associate Professor at the College and the status of tenure.
- All recommendations for promotion in academic rank shall be forwarded to the Promotion and Tenure Committee by March 1st. The Promotion and Tenure Committee will then forward to the Administration its recommendations for promotion no later than April 15th. Candidates shall receive official notification of the Board of Trustees' actions on said promotions within ten (10) days of such Trustees' actions.
- All faculty who have received their present rank (either through appointment or promotion) in a month other than September shall have the time in-rank requirements reduced by one (1) semester. All promotions shall take effect on September 1st of the year in which the promotion is granted.
- In evaluating eligible non-teaching faculty in the Library and Department of Student Personnel Services for promotion in academic rank, the criteria of "Effectiveness in the Classroom" will be interpreted as "Effectiveness in _____" (substitute the appropriate area of responsibility).
- 57-8 Should a faculty member who has received a recommendation for promotion leave the College before the effective date of his/her promotion, the next eligible candidate in the ranked order shall be considered for recommendation for promotion, if the Promotion and Tenure Committee believes that such person is qualified.
- 57-9 All faculty promoted from Instructor to Assistant Professor shall be placed at Step 5.
- 57-10 All faculty promoted from Assistant Professor to Associate Professor shall be placed at Step 6.
- 57-11 All faculty promoted from Associate Professor to Full Professor shall be placed at Step 6.

SECTION 58 PROMOTION ALLOCATIONS

- During the academic years 2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17, the College and the NCCFT shall determine allocation of the forty-eight (48) lines for promotion to the ranks of Associate Professor and Professor for the following academic year.
- Promotions approved in the 2016-17 academic year shall take effect September 1, 2017 and shall be covered by the provisions of this Contract.

SECTION 59 PROMOTION POLICY PROFESSIONAL FACULTY

- The Administration shall publish the current policy on promotional standards which will be developed by the P&T Committee in conjunction with the P&B Committees and Department Chairpersons. Changes or amendments shall require the approval of both Contract Administrators. Only those professional faculty who meet the developed standards shall be considered for promotion. There shall be no waiver of these standards.
- 59-2 Hiring for Technical Assistants and Administrative Assistants shall normally be at the P-1 level or T-1 level.
- Professional faculty members holding positions in administrative departments at the P-1, P-2, P-3, or P-4 level will be titled Administrative Assistant I, II, III, or IV respectively.
- 59-3.1 Professional faculty members holding positions in academic departments at the T-1, T-2, or T-3 level will be titled Technologist I, II, or III.
- 59-3.2 Professional faculty members holding positions in academic departments at the P-1, P-2, P-3, or P-4 level will be titled Technical Assistant I, II, III, or IV.
- The time in rank required to be eligible for promotion between P-1 and P-2 or T-1 or T-2 shall be five (5) years.
- 59-5 Effective September 1, 2009, the time in rank required to be eligible for promotion between P-2 and P-3 or T-2 and T-3 shall be four (4) years.
- Positions at the P-5 and P-6 level will continue with specific titles and no automatic upgrading will be provided at these levels.
- 59-7 A Career Path for P Grade Faculty:
- Faculty on the P scales with a master's degree or higher and five years of service as a P3 may apply for a promotion to P4 based upon increased, changed, or more complex job responsibilities since their previous promotion to P3. In academic departments, this will be documented by the Chair and Personnel & Budget Committee with a letter included in the promotion application. In the PFU, this will be documented by the Supervisor or appropriate Vice President, and reviewed by the appropriate Vice President, with a letter included in the promotion application.
- Professional faculty so promoted will be placed in accordance with Section 23-3 at a salary increase of at least \$150 on base salary beyond what said faculty member would have received had he/she not been promoted.
- In order to be promoted from P3 to P4, the applicant must demonstrate one or more of the following criteria:
 - a) New or increased programmatic responsibilities:

b) New or increased use of technology;

59-7.4

- c) Increased responsibilities due to the departure of another faculty member;
- d) Continuing professional development necessitated by complexity/change in the professional (work) area.
- a) For PFU Faculty: The promotion process will be initiated by the faculty members in accordance with P&T procedures. The application will be submitted to the Administrative Supervisor. The Supervisor will provide the Professional Advisory Committee (PAC) with a written recommendation. The PAC will review the Supervisor's recommendation, and the current and prior evaluations in the candidate's official personnel file. Following the current P&T procedures for P&B Committees, the PAC will forward the application to the P&T Committee. The application must contain an evaluation report by the Supervisor done during the current year. The P&T Committee will make the final determination on the promotion subject to its customary procedures.
- b) For Faculty in Academic Departments: The promotion process will be initiated by the faculty members in accordance with P&T procedures. The application will be submitted to the department P&B Committee. Following the current P&T and contractual procedures (contract Section 62), the P&B Committee will forward the application to the P&T Committee. The P&T Committee will make the final determination on the promotion subject to its customary procedures.
- 59-7.5 Seven promotions will be made available annually for promotions from P3 to P4.
- Professional faculty at the P5 level will normally be titled Associate Director, Associate Registrar, etc. Hiring for these P5 jobs will be done via a search process that complies with Nassau Community College Affirmative Action procedures.
- The Union and the College Administration agree to establish a joint committee to review all job classifications on the P level.
- Recruiting for all P positions and T positions will be in accordance with normal College policy covering P grade and T grade.
- 59-10 Procedures for implementing P grade and T grade promotions will be in accordance with contractual provisions.
- 59-11 Effective September 1, 2009, professional faculty members promoted from P-1 to P-2 or T-1 to T-2 shall be placed at Step 5. Professional faculty members promoted from P-2 to P-3 or T-2 to T-3 shall be placed at Step 7.

SECTION 60

QUALIFICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT AND PROMOTION - PROFESSIONAL FACULTY

- Qualifications for appointment and promotion to the various professional positions will be based on annual performance evaluation as well as meeting the following degree and time in rank requirements:
 - P-1 Associate Degree
 - P-2 Bachelor's Degree in discipline relevant to the position plus five (5) years as P-1.
 - P-3 Bachelor's Degree plus five (5) years at P-2.
 - P-4 Master's Degree plus five (5) years at P-3.
 - P5-6 Master's Degree plus appropriate experience.
- No professional faculty member employed prior to September 1, 1975 shall be required to possess an Associate or Bachelor's degree for promotion to P-2 or P-3, nor shall the lack of such degree adversely affect his/her chance for promotion.

SECTION 61

QUALIFICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT, PROMOTION, AND

RECLASSIFICATION - TECHNOLOGIST

- Professional faculty (those on P-1, P-2, P-3, and P-4) shall be permitted to apply for the position of Technologist. Movement from P-rank to T-rank shall be through a promotion process. The P&T committee shall be authorized to recommend up to ten (10) per year of the professional faculty for this new title.
- Promotion or hiring to the T rank shall require a Bachelor's degree and a certificate from a professional organization (e.g. Novel Certified, Microsoft Certified) or a Bachelor's degree and work duties requiring a high degree of technological or computer skill.
- 61-3 Upon reclassification from the P-scale to the T-scale, the faculty member shall assume the corresponding T-scale and step as he/she would have if he/she had remained on the P-scale.
- After initial placement on the T scale, time previously served on the corresponding P scale shall count towards the five (5) years required for tenure and/or promotion. (See Sections 59-4 and 59-5.)

SECTION 62 PROMOTION AND TENURE COMMITTEE

The Committee on Promotion and Tenure shall be responsible for:

- Developing and reviewing criteria for promotion and tenure with the approval of the Contract Administrators.
- Receiving and evaluating applications for promotion and tenure.
- Reviewing the personnel files of applicants for promotion or tenure prior to making their recommendations for promotion or tenure
- Forwarding a report of their recommendations to the President who shall so inform the Board of Trustees at the next regularly scheduled meeting.
- 62-1.5 Serve as a hearing committee in all tenure dismissal proceedings.
- The Promotion and Tenure Committee shall consist of an appropriate Dean (on a rotational basis) and nine (9) faculty members and two (2) alternates each of whom must be from different departments and hold the rank of Associate Professor or above, all of whom must be tenured. Faculty members without academic rank who are at least P-3 or T-3 and have a masters degree or other advanced graduate degree shall be eligible to serve on the college wide P&T Committee.
- 62-3 All members will serve staggered two year terms and may be re-elected only once. The Committee shall convene and elect its Chairperson before the end of the spring semester.
- In the event that a member of the Promotion and Tenure Committee resigns or otherwise leaves vacant an unexpired term of office, he/she shall be replaced by the first alternate who then becomes a permanent member of the Committee. In the event of a second vacancy, it shall be filled by the second alternate. No member of the faculty shall sit on the Promotion and Tenure Committee during the time he/she is applying for promotion.
- The Committee shall receive and consider for action the recommendations from the departmental Personnel and Budget Committee and the Department Chairperson which may contain a minority report originating with the departmental Personnel and Budget Committee. The Committee shall also receive and consider for action the comments and recommendation of the faculty member's Area Dean or supervising administrator which recommendation shall be provided in writing to the Committee and made a part of the P&T file relating to the matter for consideration before the committee. The comments and recommendation shall be reflective of both prior evaluations and current performance. Failure of the Area Dean or supervising administrator to provide the above shall not influence the decision of the P&T.
- 62-6 The Committee shall determine that each department's

recommendations are accurate and meet the criteria set forth herein

- In the event that there is a disagreement between the Personnel & Budget Committee and the Department Chairperson or a minority report, or if there is not unanimous agreement of the Personnel & Budget Committee on the application, or if the Promotion and Tenure Committee is considering the reversal of a unanimous recommendation of the Personnel and Budget Committee, the Promotion & Tenure Committee shall do whatever it deems necessary to determine whether the applicant is deserving. In addition, should the aforementioned circumstances occur regarding an application for tenure, the Promotion & Tenure Committee shall interview the applicant, the Department Chairperson, and representatives of the Personnel & Budget Committee before any decision is made.
- A grievance against the Promotion and Tenure Committee on matters of promotion can only be on alleged improper procedure and/or violations of contractual obligations. If the complainant alleges that one of these has occurred, he/she may appeal to the neutral third party on the Grievance Committee who will review the case in executive session and render a final and binding decision as to the appropriateness of a full grievance hearing. The decision of the Grievance Board to accept or reject a formal hearing shall be made within twenty-four (24) hours of its initial inquiry. Insofar as is possible no other promotion candidate shall have his/her privacy compromised as a result of the grievance.

SECTION 63 PERSONNEL AND BUDGET COMMITTEES

- Each academic department shall have a Personnel and Budget Committee whose size and composition, including the Chair, shall be based on the table below. The members of the Personnel and Budget Committee must be full-time faculty, a majority of whom must hold tenure whenever possible. The Committee shall not include non-unit members. This Committee shall be elected by the unit members of the department during April for a two (2) year term beginning the following September 1st. All members will serve staggered two (2) year terms. A person on leave without pay may not serve on a P&B Committee.
- An alternate on the P&B Committee has voice but no vote and becomes a voting member only when replacing a regular member due to absence. A person on leave without pay may not serve on a P&B Committee. A full-time faculty member

elected as an alternate to a P&B Committee is not considered a member of the committee and does not exercise any of its contractual functions except as follows: 1) to replace a committee member on sabbatical leave or leave of absence for the semester in which such leave occurs; 2) when a vacancy occurs due to resignation or retirement in which case the alternate completes the term of office.

Full-Time Faculty	P&B Members	Alternates
1 - 10*	3	1
11 - 24	5	2
25 +	7	2

^{*}Except African-American Studies Department

- The functions of the P&B Committee shall include departmental matters and decisions regarding personnel, budget, and other matters including, but not limited to the following:
- 63-3 **Internal Departmental Affairs**: The written documented advice of the departmental P&B Committee on matters such as the following shall be considered and implemented by the Departmental Chairperson except as provided in item #d under Academic Department Chairpersons' Duties:
- The use of allocated office space and allocated departmental equipment.
- 63-3.2 The assignment of allocated clerical staff.
- 63-3.3 The expenditure of the allocated department budget.
- 63-3.4 Consistent with the Policies and Procedures as contained in Appendix 5, the assignment of personnel to teaching schedules and the assignment of working hours for the other instructional and professional personnel. This function may be delegated to another elected departmental committee.
- The development of criteria and procedures for the evaluation of the departmental faculty and academic programs.
- 63-3.6 The evaluation of departmental faculty.
- 63-3.7 Changes in individual job responsibilities within job categories.
- 63-3.8 The annual evaluation of Chairpersons.
- 63-3.9 Conducting the election of the Chairperson.
- 63-3.10 May participate in the evaluation of adjunct faculty if so designated by the Department Chairperson.
- 63-4 Matters Which Require Approval: External to the Department
- 63-4.1 Appointments, promotion, tenure, vacancies and/or job transfer between job areas and reappointment. The Personnel

- and Budget Committee shall review the personnel file of applicants for promotion or tenure prior to making their recommendation for promotion or tenure.
- Departmental reorganization which affects the objectives of the department.
- All matters regarding minimal standards for professional grades and qualifications for each grade.
- The preparation of the budget.
- Recommendation of course offerings and course schedules within the allocated time blocks.
- On matters such as above, the advice and/or recommendation of the departmental P&B Committee shall be directed by the Department Chairperson to the offices of the appropriate Dean, or the appropriate college-wide committee. The advice and/or recommendation submitted to the appropriate Dean's office will be implemented unless that office states in writing its objection to the P&B Committee's recommendations. Unresolved disputes except for 63-4.2 and 63-4.4 shall be subject to the appropriate grievance procedure. Where objection exists concerning 63-4.2 and 63-4.4, the appropriate administrator shall meet with the P&B Committee to discuss the matter.

SECTION 64 LINCC ADVISORY COMMITTEE

There shall be a LINCC Advisory Committee. The LINCC Advisory Committee shall be composed of four LINCC Lecturers. Members shall be selected from amongst the LINCC faculty in alphabetical order. All members shall serve staggered two year terms.

It shall be the duty of the LINCC Advisory Committee to:

- a) Manage teaching assignments
- b) Conduct classroom observations
- c) Screen and interview applicants and make hiring recommendations to the Supervising Administrator
- d) Receive, review and approve curriculum recommendations
- e) Facilitate faculty development activities
- f) Prepare faculty meeting agendas

SECTION 65 FACULTY DEVELOPMENT

Effective Fall 2009, all faculty must participate in at least four (4) on or off-campus faculty development activities every two years. These may include campus based workshops, seminars, lectures or presentations, either college-wide or departmentally

sponsored; off campus conferences, seminars, workshops, lectures or presentations on topics germane to one's field and/or responsibilities at the College; or Retention Activities . It is the parties' understanding that a faculty member's participation in NYSUT and NCCFT sponsored professional development programs which would be documented and considered in an application for promotion shall constitute a faculty development activity for purposes of this section.

Faculty members must provide documentation of their participation in these events on their Year-End Evaluation Form. The Department P&B Committee will be responsible for documenting on the relevant Year-End Evaluation Form any failure to meet this faculty development obligation.

SECTION 66 PROFESSIONAL FACULTY UNIT

- The faculty not attached to academic departments (Professional Faculty Unit-PFU) shall constitute a unit for the purpose of electing a Professional Advisory Committee (PAC) and an Academic Senator. The PAC shall advise the P&T Committee on promotion and tenure, and the Administration on matters which the PAC deems appropriate. When PFU members come up for tenure and/or promotion, the supervising administrator for each PFU member will review the member's application, determine that all criteria are met, and forward their concurrence (or not) to the PAC. In turn, the PAC will review the application for promotion and/or tenure and forward their concurrence (or not) to the P&T Committee.
- The PFU will elect a PAC of no less than three (3) and no more than seven (7) members. The PAC shall report to the PFU at least four (4) times a year. The Academic Senator elected by this unit shall function as Chairperson of the Committee

SECTION 67 SABBATICAL LEAVE COMMITTEE

- The Sabbatical Leave Committee shall be responsible for:
 - a) Reviewing criteria for sabbatical leave.
 - b) Receiving and evaluating applications for sabbatical leave.
 - c) Forwarding a report of their recommendations to the President, who shall inform the Board of Trustees at its next regularly scheduled meeting of the leaves approved and recommended by the Sabbatical Leave Committee.
- 67-2 The Sabbatical Leave Committee shall consist of a dean appointed by the President and five (5) additional members of the faculty who shall be tenured and hold the rank of Associate

Professor or above. There shall be a first and a second alternate according to the number of votes each has received. Any dean may meet with the Committee. All members will serve staggered two-year terms and may be reelected only once. The Committee shall convene and elect the Chairperson before the end of the spring semester. In the event a Committee member resigns, applies for a sabbatical, or otherwise leaves an unexpired term of office, he/she shall be replaced by the first alternate who then becomes a permanent member of the Committee. In the event of a second vacancy, it shall be filled by the second alternate in the same manner. No two members of the Committee may be from the same academic department. Faculty members are not eligible to serve on the Committee during the academic year in which they will be applying for sabbatical leave. Faculty members without academic rank who are at least P-3 or T-3 and have a Masters degree or other advanced graduate degree shall be eligible to serve on the Sabbatical Leave Committee.

SECTION 68 BUDGET COMMITTEE

A committee designated by the Union may make budget recommendations to the Vice President/Finance prior to the submission of the budget.

SECTION 69 ELECTION OF COMMITTEES

Committees provided herein, when appropriate, shall be elected by the faculty in April of the academic year prior to their taking office. The election shall be supervised by the appropriate Vice President and the President of the Union or their designees.

SECTION 70 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as expressly limited by the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the County Legislature, the Board of Trustees, and the College Administration retain all of the authority, rights, and responsibilities given them by law to manage and operate the College.

SECTION 71 NO STRIKE PROVISION

In consideration of the terms and conditions herein agreed to, the Union, as the duly certified representative organization, does hereby affirm that it does not and shall not, during the term of this Agreement, assert the right to strike against the County of Nassau, as the employer of the persons represented by said Union, nor shall the Union assist, or participate in any strike or other concerted stoppage of work or slowdown, or impose upon any person

represented by it an obligation to conduct, assist, or participate in any such strike, or cause, instigate, encourage, or condone any such strike.

SECTION 72 TABLE OF ORGANIZATION

The Administration shall publish a Table of Organization within thirty (30) days of the signing of this document. This table shall include:

- 1. Job descriptions for all administrative positions.
- 2. Lines of authority.
- 3. Qualifications for each position.

At six month intervals, the Table of Organization shall be adjusted as required.

SECTION 73 PRINTING OF AGREEMENTS

The College will provide each member of the negotiating unit with a printed document within sixty (60) days of the signing of this Agreement, which shall consist of a copy of this Agreement and any amendments to date.

SECTION 74 NEW EMPLOYEES

The Union shall be notified by the Department Personnel and Budget Committee (or supervising administrator) of all new faculty positions including rank, and step offered. The Union shall have the right to confer and question. The Union shall be supplied with a list of the names, addresses, rank, and salary of all new employees whose classifications are included in the certification of the County PERB dated 11/26/68 and as amended to date.

SECTION 75 LEGALITY CLAUSE

All the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be subject to governing laws, rules, and regulations of the Civil Service Commission, the Commissioner of Education of the State of New York, and any other rules and regulations having jurisdiction thereof. If any provision of this agreement shall be found to be illegal or not approved by any of the necessary commissions or agencies having jurisdiction therein, such provision shall not be applicable, except to the extent permitted by law, and it shall not affect the remainder of the contract which shall remain in full force and effect. Substitute provisions shall be negotiated by the parties in a manner to retain the equities of the original provision.

SECTION 76 CIVIL SERVICE LAW 204a

It is agreed by and between the parties that any provision of this Agreement requiring legislative action to permit its implementation by amendment of law or by providing the additional funds therefore shall not become effective until the appropriate legislative body has given approval.

SECTION 77 VOTE/COPE PAYROLL DEDUCTION

The employer agrees to deduct as soon as practicable VOTE/COPE contributions from the salaries of unit employees as said employees individually and voluntarily authorized by the completion of the VOTE/COPE authorization form as contained in Appendix 7. The contributions will be forwarded directly to VOTE/COPE, 800 Troy-Schenectady Road, Latham, New York 12110-2455.

SECTION 78 DURATION OF CONTRACT

The duration of this contract shall be for four (4) years, commencing September 1, 2013 and terminating August 31, 2017. In the event of a financial emergency the NCCFT agrees to meet and confer with the Administration for the purpose of discussing ameliorating measures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE FEDERATION OF TEACHERS has executed this Agreement the day and year first written and the COUNTY OF NASSAU and NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE have executed this Agreement the 22nd day of April 2014.

EDWARD MANGANO

M. DEBRA DESANTO

COUNTY OF NASSAU

NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FEDERATION OF TEACHERS
BY: EDWARD MANGANO
COUNTY EXECUTIVE

PRESIDENT

KENNETH S. SAUNDERS

NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE BY: KENNETH S. SAUNDERS ACTING PRESIDENT

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY WITH ACADEMIC RANK ACADEMIC YEAR 2013-2014

		Assist.	Assoc.	
Step	Instructor	Professor	Professor	Professor
1	\$55,375	\$63,132	\$70,938	\$83,083
$1\frac{1}{2}$	\$57,123	\$63,998	\$72,045	\$84,351
$2\frac{1}{2}$	\$59,517	\$65,729	\$74,259	\$86,888
$3\frac{1}{2}$	\$60,803	\$67,461	\$76,474	\$89,427
$4\frac{1}{2}$	\$62,088	\$69,194	\$78,693	\$91,962
5½	\$63,375	\$70,926	\$80,910	\$94,497
$6\frac{1}{2}$	\$64,657	\$72,659	\$83,126	\$97,034
$7\frac{1}{2}$	\$65,942	\$74,392	\$85,343	\$99,570
81/2	\$67,228	\$76,125	\$87,559	\$102,107
$9\frac{1}{2}$	\$68,513	\$77,865	\$89,778	\$104,645
$10\frac{1}{2}$	\$69,799	\$79,606	\$92,001	\$107,184
$11\frac{1}{2}$	\$71,085	\$81,339	\$94,222	\$109,720
12½	\$72,370	\$83,071	\$96,443	\$112,256
$13\frac{1}{2}$	\$73,654	\$84,803	\$98,663	\$114,795
$14\frac{1}{2}$	\$74,942	\$86,537	\$100,885	\$117,332
$15\frac{1}{2}$	\$76,264	\$88,271	\$103,109	\$119,868
16	\$76,941	\$89,139	\$104,221	\$121,136

Please note, the salary schedule dated 9/1/13 is for informational purposes only. The salaries listed reflect a ½ step salary adjustment awarded to eligible NCCFT employees.

The remaining $\frac{1}{2}$ step to be awarded $\frac{9}{1}$ 4.

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY WITH ACADEMIC RANK ACADEMIC YEAR 2014-2015

Ston	Instructor	Assist. Professor	Assoc. Professor	Professor
Step 1				110100001
_	\$55,375	\$63,132	\$70,938	\$83,083
2	\$58,871	\$64,864	\$73,152	\$85,619
3	\$60,162	\$66,594	\$75,365	\$88,157
4	\$61,443	\$68,327	\$77,583	\$90,697
5	\$62,733	\$70,061	\$79,802	\$93,227
6	\$64,016	\$71,791	\$82,018	\$95,766
7	\$65,297	\$73,527	\$84,233	\$98,302
8	\$66,587	\$75,257	\$86,453	\$100,838
9	\$67,869	\$76,992	\$88,665	\$103,375
10	\$69,157	\$78,738	\$90,890	\$105,915
11	\$70,441	\$80,473	\$93,111	\$108,452
12	\$71,728	\$82,205	\$95,332	\$110,987
13	\$73,011	\$83,936	\$97,553	\$113,525
14	\$74,297	\$85,670	\$99,772	\$116,064
15	\$75,587	\$87,403	\$101,997	\$118,600
16	\$76,941	\$89,139	\$104,221	\$121,136

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY WITH ACADEMIC RANK ACADEMIC YEAR 2015-2016

~ .		Assist.	Assoc.	T. 0
Step	Instructor	Professor	Professor	Professor
1	\$56,344	\$64,237	\$72,179	\$84,537
2	\$59,901	\$65,999	\$74,432	\$87,117
3	\$61,215	\$67,759	\$76,684	\$89,700
4	\$62,518	\$69,523	\$78,941	\$92,284
5	\$63,831	\$71,287	\$81,199	\$94,858
6	\$65,136	\$73,047	\$83,453	\$97,442
7	\$66,440	\$74,814	\$85,707	\$100,022
8	\$67,752	\$76,574	\$87,966	\$102,603
9	\$69,057	\$78,339	\$90,217	\$105,184
10	\$70,367	\$80,116	\$92,481	\$107,769
11	\$71,674	\$81,881	\$94,740	\$110,350
12	\$72,983	\$83,644	\$97,000	\$112,929
13	\$74,289	\$85,405	\$99,260	\$115,512
14	\$75,597	\$87,169	\$101,518	\$118,095
15	\$76,910	\$88,933	\$103,782	\$120,676
16	\$78,287	\$90,699	\$106,045	\$123,256

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY WITH ACADEMIC RANK ACADEMIC YEAR 2016-2017

Step	Instructor	Asst. Professor	Assoc. Professor	Professor
1	\$57,471	\$65,522	\$73,623	\$86,228
2	\$61,099	\$67,319	\$75,921	\$88,860
3	\$62,439	\$69,115	\$78,218	\$91,494
4	\$63,769	\$70,913	\$80,520	\$94,130
5	\$65,107	\$72,713	\$82,823	\$96,756
6	\$66,439	\$74,508	\$85,122	\$99,391
7	\$67,768	\$76,310	\$87,421	\$102,023
8	\$69,107	\$78,105	\$89,725	\$104,655
9	\$70,438	\$79,906	\$92,021	\$107,288
10	\$71,775	\$81,718	\$94,330	\$109,924
11	\$73,107	\$83,519	\$96,635	\$112,557
12	\$74,443	\$85,316	\$98,940	\$115,188
13	\$75,774	\$87,113	\$101,245	\$117,822
14	\$77,109	\$88,913	\$103,548	\$120,457
15	\$78,448	\$90,711	\$105,858	\$123,089
16	\$79,853	\$92,513	\$108,166	\$125,721

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON P GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2013-2014

Step	P1	P2	Р3
1	\$50,885	\$55,398	\$60,294
$1\frac{1}{2}$	\$51,369	\$55,963	\$60,951
$2\frac{1}{2}$	\$52,830	\$57,507	\$62,759
$3\frac{1}{2}$	\$54,784	\$59,463	\$65,068
$4\frac{1}{2}$	\$56,735	\$61,419	\$67,377
$5\frac{1}{2}$	\$58,689	\$63,372	\$69,684
$6\frac{1}{2}$	\$60,647	\$65,327	\$71,996
$7\frac{1}{2}$	\$62,601	\$67,284	\$74,311
81/2	\$64,556	\$69,240	\$76,621
$9\frac{1}{2}$	\$66,507	\$71,196	\$78,931
$10\frac{1}{2}$	\$68,459	\$73,150	\$81,241
$11\frac{1}{2}$	\$70,421	\$75,103	\$83,552
$12\frac{1}{2}$	\$72,333	\$77,024	\$85,820
$13\frac{1}{2}$	\$74,193	\$78,907	\$88,042
$14\frac{1}{2}$	\$76,056	\$80,788	\$90,265
$15\frac{1}{2}$	\$77,920	\$82,668	\$92,487
$16\frac{1}{2}$	\$79,784	\$84,551	\$94,707
$17\frac{1}{2}$	\$81,406	\$86,434	\$96,929
18	\$82,094	\$87,375	\$98,040
Step	P4	P5	P6
1	\$64,808	\$69,193	\$73,188
11/2	\$65,546	\$70,076	\$74,077
$2\frac{1}{2}$	\$67,528	\$72,294	\$76,391
$3\frac{1}{2}$	\$70,014	\$74,960	\$79,247
$4\frac{1}{2}$	\$72,499	\$77,625	\$82,108
$5\frac{1}{2}$	\$74,990	\$80,291	\$84,970
$6\frac{1}{2}$	\$77,480	\$82,959	\$87,828
$7\frac{1}{2}$	\$79,970	\$85,629	\$90,680
$8\frac{1}{2}$	\$82,462	\$88,296	\$93,538
$9\frac{1}{2}$	\$84,950	\$90,962	\$96,397
$10\frac{1}{2}$	\$87,436	\$93,627	\$99,253
$11\frac{1}{2}$	\$89,925	\$96,292	\$102,110
12½	\$92,368	\$98,918	\$104,927
$13\frac{1}{2}$	\$94,764	\$101,502	\$107,697

$14\frac{1}{2}$	\$97,160	\$104,085	\$110,456
$15\frac{1}{2}$	\$99,558	\$106,669	\$113,214
$16\frac{1}{2}$	\$101,954	\$109,252	\$115,973
$17\frac{1}{2}$	\$104,350	\$111,835	\$118,732
18	\$105,548	\$113,125	\$120,111

Please note, the salary schedule dated 9/1/13 is for informational purposes only. The salaries listed reflect a $\frac{1}{2}$ step salary adjustment awarded to eligible NCCFT employees.

The remaining $\frac{1}{2}$ step to be awarded $\frac{9}{1/14}$.

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON P GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2014-2015

Step	P1	P2	Р3
1	\$50,885	\$55,398	\$60,294
2	\$51,852	\$56,528	\$61,607
3	\$53,808	\$58,485	\$63,911
4	\$55,760	\$60,441	\$66,225
5	\$57,709	\$62,396	\$68,529
6	\$59,669	\$64,348	\$70,838
7	\$61,624	\$66,306	\$73,154
8	\$63,577	\$68,262	\$75,467
9	\$65,534	\$70,217	\$77,774
10	\$67,479	\$72,175	\$80,087
11	\$69,439	\$74,124	\$82,395
12	\$71,402	\$76,082	\$84,709
13	\$73,263	\$77,965	\$86,931
14	\$75,123	\$79,848	\$89,152
15	\$76,989	\$81,727	\$91,378
16	\$78,851	\$83,609	\$93,595
17	\$80,717	\$85,493	\$95,818
18	\$82,094	\$87,375	\$98,040

Step	P4	P5	P6
1	\$64,808	\$69,193	\$73,188
2	\$66,283	\$70,959	\$74,965
3	\$68,772	\$73,629	\$77,817
4	\$71,256	\$76,291	\$80,677
5	\$73,742	\$78,959	\$83,539
6	\$76,237	\$81,623	\$86,401

7	\$78,723	\$84,295	\$89,255
8	\$81,217	\$86,963	\$92,105
9	\$83,707	\$89,628	\$94,970
10	\$86,192	\$92,296	\$97,824
11	\$88,680	\$94,958	\$100,682
12	\$91,170	\$97,625	\$103,537
13	\$93,566	\$100,211	\$106,316
14	\$95,961	\$102,792	\$109,078
15	\$98,359	\$105,378	\$111,833
16	\$100,756	\$107,960	\$114,594
17	\$103,152	\$110,544	\$117,352
18	\$105,548	\$113,125	\$120,111

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON P GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2015-2016

Step	P1	P2	Р3
1	\$51,775	\$56,367	\$61,349
2	\$52,759	\$57,517	\$62,685
3	\$54,750	\$59,508	\$65,029
4	\$56,736	\$61,499	\$67,384
5	\$58,719	\$63,488	\$69,728
6	\$60,713	\$65,474	\$72,078
7	\$62,702	\$67,466	\$74,434
8	\$64,690	\$69,457	\$76,788
9	\$66,681	\$71,446	\$79,135
10	\$68,660	\$73,438	\$81,489
11	\$70,654	\$75,421	\$83,837
12	\$72,652	\$77,413	\$86,191
13	\$74,545	\$79,329	\$88,452
14	\$76,438	\$81,245	\$90,712
15	\$78,336	\$83,157	\$92,977
16	\$80,231	\$85,072	\$95,233
17	\$82,130	\$86,989	\$97,495
18	\$83,531	\$88,904	\$99,756
Step	P4	P5	P6
Step 1	P4 \$65,942	P5 \$70,404	P6 \$74,469
1	\$65,942	\$70,404	\$74,469
1 2	\$65,942 \$67,443	\$70,404 \$72,201	\$74,469 \$76,277
1 2 3	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179
1 2 3 4	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089
1 2 3 4 5	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001
1 2 3 4 5 6	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700 \$90,232	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911 \$96,620	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536 \$102,444
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700 \$90,232 \$92,765	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911 \$96,620 \$99,333	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536 \$102,444 \$105,349
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700 \$90,232 \$92,765 \$95,203	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911 \$96,620 \$99,333 \$101,965	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536 \$102,444 \$105,349 \$108,177
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700 \$90,232 \$92,765 \$95,203 \$97,640	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911 \$96,620 \$99,333 \$101,965 \$104,591	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536 \$102,444 \$105,349 \$108,177 \$110,987
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700 \$90,232 \$92,765 \$95,203 \$97,640 \$100,080	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911 \$96,620 \$99,333 \$101,965 \$104,591 \$107,222	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536 \$102,444 \$105,349 \$108,177 \$110,987 \$113,790
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	\$65,942 \$67,443 \$69,976 \$72,503 \$75,032 \$77,571 \$80,101 \$82,638 \$85,172 \$87,700 \$90,232 \$92,765 \$95,203 \$97,640 \$100,080 \$102,519	\$70,404 \$72,201 \$74,918 \$77,626 \$80,341 \$83,051 \$85,770 \$88,485 \$91,196 \$93,911 \$96,620 \$99,333 \$101,965 \$104,591 \$107,222 \$109,849	\$74,469 \$76,277 \$79,179 \$82,089 \$85,001 \$87,913 \$90,817 \$93,717 \$96,632 \$99,536 \$102,444 \$105,349 \$108,177 \$110,987 \$113,790 \$116,599

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON P GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2016-2017

Step	P1	P2	P3
1	\$52,811	\$57,495	\$62,576
2	\$53,815	\$58,668	\$63,939
3	\$55,845	\$60,699	\$66,330
4	\$57,871	\$62,729	\$68,732
5	\$59,893	\$64,758	\$71,123
6	\$61,927	\$66,784	\$73,519
7	\$63,956	\$68,816	\$75,923
8	\$65,983	\$70,846	\$78,323
9	\$68,014	\$72,875	\$80,718
10	\$70,033	\$74,907	\$83,118
11	\$72,067	\$76,930	\$85,514
12	\$74,105	\$78,962	\$87,915
13	\$76,036	\$80,916	\$90,221
14	\$77,966	\$82,870	\$92,526
15	\$79,903	\$84,820	\$94,837
16	\$81,836	\$86,774	\$97,138
17	\$83,772	\$88,729	\$99,445
18	\$85,201	\$90,682	\$101,751
Step	P4	P5	P6
Step 1	P4 \$67,261	P5 \$71,812	P6 \$75,958
. –			
1	\$67,261	\$71,812	\$75,958
1 2	\$67,261 \$68,792	\$71,812 \$73,645	\$75,958 \$77,802
1 2 3	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762
1 2 3 4	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731
1 2 3 4 5	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701
1 2 3 4 5 6	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875 \$89,454	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020 \$95,789	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565 \$101,527
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875 \$89,454 \$92,037	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020 \$95,789 \$98,552	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565 \$101,527 \$104,493
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875 \$89,454 \$92,037 \$94,621	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020 \$95,789 \$98,552 \$101,320	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565 \$101,527 \$104,493 \$107,456
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875 \$89,454 \$92,037 \$94,621 \$97,107	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020 \$95,789 \$98,552 \$101,320 \$104,004	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565 \$101,527 \$104,493 \$107,456 \$110,340
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875 \$89,454 \$92,037 \$94,621 \$97,107 \$99,593	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020 \$95,789 \$98,552 \$101,320 \$104,004 \$106,683	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565 \$101,527 \$104,493 \$107,456 \$110,340 \$113,207
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	\$67,261 \$68,792 \$71,375 \$73,953 \$76,533 \$79,123 \$81,703 \$84,291 \$86,875 \$89,454 \$92,037 \$94,621 \$97,107 \$99,593 \$102,082	\$71,812 \$73,645 \$76,416 \$79,179 \$81,948 \$84,712 \$87,486 \$90,255 \$93,020 \$95,789 \$98,552 \$101,320 \$104,004 \$106,683 \$109,367	\$75,958 \$77,802 \$80,762 \$83,731 \$86,701 \$89,671 \$92,633 \$95,591 \$98,565 \$101,527 \$104,493 \$107,456 \$110,340 \$113,207 \$116,066

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON T GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2013-2014

Step	T1	T2	T3
1	\$56,827	\$61,339	\$66,237
$1\frac{1}{2}$	\$57,310	\$61,905	\$66,893
$2\frac{1}{2}$	\$58,771	\$63,449	\$68,701
$3\frac{1}{2}$	\$60,726	\$65,405	\$71,010
$4\frac{1}{2}$	\$62,677	\$67,359	\$73,319
$5\frac{1}{2}$	\$64,630	\$69,313	\$75,627
$6\frac{1}{2}$	\$66,588	\$71,269	\$77,938
$7\frac{1}{2}$	\$68,542	\$73,227	\$80,252
$8\frac{1}{2}$	\$70,497	\$75,182	\$82,562
$9\frac{1}{2}$	\$72,448	\$77,137	\$84,872
$10\frac{1}{2}$	\$74,401	\$79,091	\$87,183
$11\frac{1}{2}$	\$76,362	\$81,046	\$89,494
$12\frac{1}{2}$	\$78,274	\$82,965	\$91,762
$13\frac{1}{2}$	\$80,136	\$84,847	\$93,984
$14\frac{1}{2}$	\$81,999	\$86,729	\$96,207
$15\frac{1}{2}$	\$83,861	\$88,610	\$98,428
$16\frac{1}{2}$	\$85,725	\$90,493	\$100,647
$17\frac{1}{2}$	\$87,347	\$92,377	\$102,870
18	\$88,035	\$93,319	\$103,981

Please note, the salary schedule dated 9/1/13 is for informational purposes only. The salaries listed reflect a $\frac{1}{2}$ step salary adjustment awarded to eligible NCCFT employees.

The remaining $\frac{1}{2}$ step to be awarded $\frac{9}{1/14}$.

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON T GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2014-2015

Step	T01	T02	T03
1	\$56,827	\$61,339	\$66,237
2	\$57,792	\$62,470	\$67,549
3	\$59,749	\$64,427	\$69,853
4	\$61,702	\$66,382	\$72,166
5	\$63,649	\$68,336	\$74,472
6	\$65,611	\$70,289	\$76,781
7	\$67,565	\$72,249	\$79,095
8	\$69,518	\$74,205	\$81,408
9	\$71,476	\$76,159	\$83,715
10	\$73,420	\$78,115	\$86,029
11	\$75,381	\$80,067	\$88,337
12	\$77,343	\$82,024	\$90,651
13	\$79,205	\$83,905	\$92,873
14	\$81,066	\$85,789	\$95,094
15	\$82,931	\$87,669	\$97,320
16	\$84,791	\$89,550	\$99,535
17	\$86,659	\$91,435	\$101,759
18	\$88,035	\$93,319	\$103,981

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON T GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2015-2016

Step	T01	T02	T03
1	\$57,821	\$62,412	\$67,396
2	\$58,803	\$63,563	\$68,731
3	\$60,795	\$65,554	\$71,075
4	\$62,782	\$67,544	\$73,429
5	\$64,763	\$69,532	\$75,775
6	\$66,759	\$71,519	\$78,125
7	\$68,747	\$73,513	\$80,479
8	\$70,735	\$75,504	\$82,833
9	\$72,727	\$77,492	\$85,180
10	\$74,705	\$79,482	\$87,535
11	\$76,700	\$81,468	\$89,883
12	\$78,697	\$83,459	\$92,237
13	\$80,591	\$85,373	\$94,498
14	\$82,485	\$87,290	\$96,758
15	\$84,382	\$89,203	\$99,023
16	\$86,275	\$91,117	\$101,277
17	\$88,176	\$93,035	\$103,540
18	\$89,576	\$94,952	\$105,801

APPENDIX 1 SALARIES FOR FACULTY ON T GRADES ACADEMIC YEAR 2016-2017

Step	T01	T02	T03
1	\$58,978	\$63,661	\$68,744
2	\$59,979	\$64,834	\$70,106
3	\$62,010	\$66,866	\$72,497
4	\$64,037	\$68,895	\$74,897
5	\$66,058	\$70,923	\$77,291
6	\$68,094	\$72,949	\$79,687
7	\$70,122	\$74,984	\$82,089
8	\$72,149	\$77,014	\$84,489
9	\$74,181	\$79,042	\$86,884
10	\$76,199	\$81,072	\$89,285
11	\$78,234	\$83,098	\$91,681
12	\$80,270	\$85,129	\$94,082
13	\$82,203	\$87,081	\$96,388
14	\$84,134	\$89,036	\$98,693
15	\$86,070	\$90,987	\$101,004
16	\$88,000	\$92,939	\$103,302
17	\$89,939	\$94,896	\$105,611
18	\$91,367	\$96,851	\$107,917

APPENDIX 2 COMPUTATION OF SICK LEAVE

If a classroom faculty member is stricken with an extended illness during a regular teaching semester and reports absent as a result, then and in that situation for the balance of said semester said classroom faculty member will be charged one day sick leave for each day or part thereof that said faculty member is scheduled to teach and is absent.

In the event that a classroom teaching faculty member reports absent because of illness, commencing on or before the beginning of the normally scheduled semester that said faculty member is scheduled to teach and it is determined that said faculty member will be absent for the entire semester, then and in that event said faculty member will be charged for four days sick leave for each and every week of said semester that he or she reports absent because of illness. LINCC Lecturers shall be charged five days sick leave for each and every week of said semester that he or she reports absent since LINCC Lecturers have a five-day work week.

For purposes of computing the length of a semester, in paragraph two herein above, it shall be presumed that classroom teaching faculty members work a sixteen-week semester.

APPENDIX 3 NCC FEDERATION OF TEACHERS - LOCAL #3150 ENROLLMENT FORMS

Membership Enrollment Forms and Dental Enrollment Forms are located in the NCCFT Office.

APPENDIX 4 NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE GRIEVANCE REPORT

(For use only by employees represented by the negotiating unit of the NCCFT)

Employee's Name
Date of Grievance
Department
GRIEVANCE (Step 1)
1. Date presented to Supervisor or Department Chairperson:
 Department Chairperson Signature: Employee Signature:
(Step 2)
College President (Note: To be answered within ten working days of date presented to College President)
Date of Notification to President of Union:
Accepted Referred to Grievance Board.
Signature of NCCFT Grievance Chair
(Step 3)
NASSAU COMMUNITY COLLEGE GRIEVANCE BOARD DISPOSITION
Date:
Chairperson:
Member:
Member:
Copies:
Supervisor and/or Department Chairperson Supervising Dean or Director
Grievant
NCCFT
Office of Labor Relations

APPENDIX 5 POLICIES & PROCEDURES FOR ASSIGNMENT AND EVALUATION OF FACULTY

- 1. It is the responsibility of the academic departments to establish and review criteria for assignment of faculty to specific courses. The criteria must include, but need not be limited to the following:
- (a) All faculty must meet initial qualifications for appointment to the academic department. These qualifications must include, as a minimum, the degree requirement established by the department at the time of appointment;
- (b) All faculty must possess academic credentials necessary to teach the course, established by each Departmental Personnel and Budget Committee;
- (c) All faculty must demonstrate evidence of current knowledge of specific course subject matter, sensitivity to the needs of the students being served, and where necessary, evidence of skill in specialized teaching techniques.
- 2. All recommendations for faculty assignments to courses will be made by the department chairperson according to departmental procedures and the policies and procedures enunciated herein.
- 3. In addition to initial qualifications for appointment, all faculty must meet specific criteria for assignment listed in Item 1 above. Consistent with Item 2 above, in exercising professional judgment in making recommendations for assignments for teaching specific course sections, the department chair may take into consideration additional factors such as:
 - i. Successful prior experience teaching the course;
 - ii. Ability to meet student needs.

APPENDIX 6 TECHNICAL ASSISTANT(S) CONVERSION

Whereas, the diversity of the student body served by Nassau Community College has made it necessary for some of the academic departments to assist students with individualized or group instruction outside the classroom and student academic support services which are provided through workshops, learning centers or laboratories, and

Whereas, some academic departments, to better serve the students, find it necessary to establish a closer connection between classroom instruction and the student academic support services provided outside the classroom, and Whereas, Middle States accreditation standards and the recent Policies and Procedures for Evaluation and Assignment of Faculty passed by the Nassau Community College Board of Trustees, require the monitoring of student needs and the development of appropriate services,

Now therefore, Nassau Community College and the Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers (NCCFT) agree as follows:

- 1. After a review of department/student needs and after making a determination that curriculum within the academic program requires out-of-classroom support, a department P&B Committee may develop organized student academic support programs and may request that a line(s) held by a Technical Assistant(s) who meets the qualification for teaching in the department be converted to a non-classroom instructional staff line(s). Requests for conversion must be submitted by the Department Chair to the administration accompanied by a detailed written program of the student academic support services requested. The administration will notify the Department Chair and the P&B Committee in writing of its approval or disapproval of the conversion.
- 2. The decision of the administration concerning the conversion shall not be subject to the Collective Bargaining Agreement grievance procedure.
- 3. Departments given approval for such conversion shall not be given an additional Technical Assistant line(s) to replace the converted line(s).
- 4. Technical Assistant(s) converted to non-classroom instructional staff will continue performing their support/tutorial assignments. In addition he/she may be assigned by the Department P&B to teach one section of a class (not to exceed six contact hours) as part of his/her normal work schedule. All such assignments must be academically related to the support/tutorial work of the non-classroom instructional staff member.
- 5. All lines converted as provided for herein, shall be subject to existing work-day, -week and -year provisions of the NCCFT Collective Bargaining Agreement governing non-classroom instructional faculty.
- 6. Technical Assistants whose lines are converted to non-classroom instructional lines shall be given the title and rank of Instructor. Salary for converted Technical Assistant(s) shall be fixed as follows: where the salary

as a Technical Assistant (P scale salary) lies between Step 1 and Step 10 of the negotiated salary for the Instructor rank, the converted Technical Assistant shall be placed on the Instructor step that most closely equals, but, is not less than, the salary received as a Technical Assistant (P scale salary). In all other cases, the salary for the converted Technical Assistant will be equal to the P scale salary.

7. Technical Assistants whose lines are converted will maintain tenure as Technical Assistants, if previously earned, but will begin the probationary period in which to earn tenure and promotion as a non-classroom instructional staff member.

APPENDIX 7 VOTE/COPE AUTHORIZATION FORM

rne	undersigned	aumorizes	(name	01	employer
			to deduct (or f	rom one pay	check at a
specific	time) the sum of \$_		and to forward	that amount	to VOTE-
COPE,	P.O. Box 5190, Alba	ny, NY 1220	5-0190.		
underst condition that V contributelection	thorization is made vanding that the main of membership in OTE-COPE will utions and expenditus. This authorizations while I am employ	king of con- any labor or use the mon- ures in conn- on shall ren	tributions to Verganization or one of the control o	OTE-COPE of my employ es to make oderal, state rce and effe	is not a syment and political and local
Name		Ι	D#		
Phone #	#		Date		
Signatu	re				

VOTE-COPE is the New York State United Teachers' political action fund. VOTE-COPE solicits and accepts only voluntary contributions. Contributions or gifts to VOTE-COPE are not tax deductible.

APPENDIX 8 STUDENT ADVISEMENT

The "stipulated academic departments" are as follows:

Biology

Chemistry

Economics/Finance

English

Foreign Languages

History/Political Science/Geography

Mathematics/Statistics/Computer Science

Philosophy

Physical Sciences

Psychology

Reading/Basic Education

Sociology

APPENDIX 9 CLINICAL INSTRUCTOR

Job description: Primarily experience based training and instruction in off-campus non-classroom setting for departments of Nursing and Allied Health Sciences.

Qualifications: Same as for Instructor in the above departments.

Work Assignment: No fewer than 9 nor more than 12 clinical contact hours in Fall and/or Spring semester, as determined by department need.

Tenure Eligibility: After 150 clinical contact hours Fall and/or Spring accumulation.

If 9 clinical hours are not available in a given semester, such faculty shall be considered on leave without pay.

Temporary contracts are assigned until the Spring semester wherein eligibility for tenure is reached. A probationary contract will be issued in the semester of eligibility for tenure. Tenure assures assignment, if available.

College and NCCFT shall agree upon a tenure application.

Office Hours on Clinical Site: Same as current contract.

Those clinical instructors in the Nursing Department with 70 hours as of the date of execution of this Memorandum of Agreement, by the College and NCCFT, will continue on a tenure track. Only up to a maximum of six tenured positions in the Nursing Department shall be "tenure track" positions. As each of the incumbents of the six "tenure track" clinical instructors in the Nursing Department leaves the employ of the College, the position held by the incumbent shall be abolished.

Those clinical instructors in the Allied Health Sciences Department with 70 hours as of the date of execution of this Agreement will continue on a tenure track. Only up to a maximum of ten positions in the Allied Health Sciences Department shall be "tenure track" positions. The ten tenured positions in the Allied Health Sciences Department will be grandfathered and shall not be deemed abolished as the incumbents thereof leave the employ of the College.

SALARY	ACADEMIC	YEAR	2013-2014*

Step	1	\$37,911
	$1\frac{1}{2}$	\$38,479
	$2\frac{1}{2}$	\$39,634
	$3\frac{1}{2}$	\$40,824
	$4\frac{1}{2}$	\$42,048
	$5\frac{1}{2}$	\$43,311
	$6\frac{1}{2}$	\$44,611
	$7\frac{1}{2}$	\$45,947
	$8\frac{1}{2}$	\$47,324
	$9\frac{1}{2}$	\$48,745
	10	\$49,467

^{*} Clinical Instructors with a 9 contact hour schedule will have a 20% reduction in salary.

Please note, the salary schedule dated 9/1/13 is for informational purposes only. The salaries listed reflect a $\frac{1}{2}$ step salary adjustment awarded to eligible NCCFT employees.

The remaining $\frac{1}{2}$ step to be awarded $\frac{9}{1/14}$.

SAT.	ΔRV	ACAD	EMIC	YEAR	2014.	.2015*
SAL	A \mathbf{N} \mathbf{I}	ALAD		IDAN	4014·	-4013

Step	1	\$37,911
	2	\$39,047
	3	\$40,221
	4	\$41,427
	5	\$42,669
	6	\$43,952
	7	\$45,269
	8	\$46,625
	9	\$48,022
	10	\$49,467

^{*} Clinical Instructors with a 9 contact hour schedule will have a 20% reduction in salary.

SALARY ACADEMIC YEAR 2015-2016*

Step	1	\$38,574
_	2	\$39,730
	3	\$40,925
	4	\$42,152
	5	\$43,416
	6	\$44,721
	7	\$46,061
	8	\$47,441
	9	\$48,862
	10	\$50,333

^{*} Clinical Instructors with a 9 contact hour schedule will have a 20% reduction in salary.

SALARY ACADEMIC YEAR 2016-2017*

Step	1	\$39,346
	2	\$40,525
	3	\$41,743
	4	\$42,995
	5	\$44,284
	6	\$45,616
	7	\$46,982
	8	\$48,390
	9	\$49,840
	10	\$51,339

 $[\]mbox{*}$ Clinical Instructors with a 9 contact hour schedule will have a 20% reduction in salary.

APPENDIX 10 LINCC LECTURER

The parties agree that each of the following enumerated sections of this Agreement shall be applicable to LINCC Lecturers effective September 1, 2014 *unless an alternative effective date for applicability is indicated below. Any provisions not identified in this Appendix shall not be applicable to LINCC Lecturers.

Applicable Sections:

- 1 The Nassau Community College Federation of Teachers
- 2 Agency Fee
- 3 Definitions
- 7 LINCC Lecturer & LINCC Coordinator Work Year/Work Week /Work Day
- 8 Early AM Classes
- 11 Outside Employment
- 13 Equal Employment Policy
- 15 Faculty Files
- 16 Academic Freedom
- 17 College Wide Meetings
- 18 Evaluation of Professional Competence (excluding 18-1 through 18-6)
- 19 Grievance Procedure
- 20 Academic Senate
- Wage Increase (excluding 23-1.1 and 23-4) (*effective 9/1/13)
- 24 Sick Leave (excluding Section 24-1 which is *effective 9/1/13)
- 25 Supplemental Sick Leave
- 26 Catastrophic Leave
- 27 Verification of Illness
- 30 Professional and Military Leave
- 31 Parental Leave
- 32 College Business
- Holidays (applicable as appropriate to Academic Calendar)
- 35 Jury Duty
- 36 Health Insurance
- 37 Optical Plan
- 38 Dental Plan
- 39 Life and Disability Insurance
- 40 Death Benefit
- 41 Accidental Injury Death Benefit
- 42 Mileage Allowance
- 43 Academic Regalia
- 45 Retirement Plans
- 48 Discontinuance of Service
- Appointment Policy, Faculty and Administration (excluding 50-1 through 50-7)

- Reappointment and Non-Reappointment (excluding 51-1 through 51-4)
- 52 Progressive Disciplinary Process
- 53 Dismissal of Tenured Faculty
- 55 Tenure Policy (excluding 55-2 and 55-3)
- 56 Academic Departments- Creation/Mergers/Splits
- 62 Promotion and Tenure Committee
- 64 LINCC Advisory Committee
- 65 Faculty Development
- 68 Budget Committee
- 69 Election of Committees
- 70 Management Rights
- 71 No Strike Provision
- 72 Table of Organization
- 73 Printing of Agreements
- 74 New Employees
- 75 Legality Clause
- 76 Civil Service Law 204a
- 77 Vote/Cope Payroll Deduction

Step

1

784 Duration of Contract

LINCC Lecturer salary schedule for the 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016, and 2016-2017 contract years:

SALARY ACADEMIC YEAR 2013-2014 and 2014-2015

Lecturer I

\$48,874

	2		\$52,372
	3		\$53,662
	4		\$54,943
	5		\$56,233
	6		\$57,516
		Lecturer II	
Step	7		\$58,796
-	8		\$60,087
	9		\$61,370
	10		\$62,657
	11		\$63,942
	12		\$65,229
	13		\$66,512
	14		\$67,798
	15		\$69,086
	16		\$70,441

SALARY ACADEMIC YEAR 2015-2016

		Lecturer I	
Step	1		\$49,729
-	2		\$53,289
	3		\$54,601
	4		\$55,905
	5		\$57,217
	6		\$58,523
		Lecturer II	
Step	7		\$59,825
	8		\$61,139
	9		\$62,444
	10		\$63,753
	11		\$65,061
	12		\$66,371
	13		\$67,676
	14		\$68,984
	15		\$70,295
	16		\$71,674

SALARY ACADEMIC YEAR 2016-2017

Step	1	<u>Lecturer I</u> \$50,724
1	2	\$54,354
	3	\$55,693
	4	\$57,023
	5	\$58,361
	6	\$59,693
		Lecturer II
Step	7	\$61,021
_	8	\$62,361
	9	\$63,693
	10	\$65,029
	11	\$66,362
	12	\$67,698
	13	\$69,029
	14	\$70,364
	15	\$71,701
	16	\$73,107

INDEX

	SECTION	PAGE
Academic Student Advisement	4-1.4	6
Academic Departments - Creation/Merger/Splits	56	67
Academic Freedom	16	22
Academic Regalia - Reimbursement	4-3.2; 43 43-1.1; 43-1.2	8; 49 49
Academic Senate - Membership	20 20-3; 20-4	28 28
Accidental Injury Death Benefit	41	48
Administration – Definition	3-3	6
Administrators Teaching	14	20
Advanced Standing/Nursing - Compensation - Evaluators	5-1.10 5-1.10-1 5-1.10	11 11 11
Agency Fee	2	4
All Purpose Leave - Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	5-2.2	12
Appointment Policy Faculty & Administration - Faculty Joining Administration - Selection Committee	50 50-3 50-1	53 55 53
Assignment of Rooms and Courses	5-1.6	9
Assistant to Chair - Duties - Released Time	22 22-4 22-1; 22-5	34 35 34; 35
Bereavement	5-2.4	12
Budget Committee	68	77

	SECTION	PAGE
Catastrophic Leave	26	38
Certification of Representation		1
Chairpersons – Academic Departments	21	29
- Acting Chairperson	21-2.6	30
- Annual Reports	21-2.3	29
- Compensation		
- Day	21-7	33
- Evening/Summer	21-7.1	34
- Duties	21-3	30
- Election	21-2	29
- Library	21-4.1	32
- Office Hours		
- Day	21-4.1	32
- Evening/Summer	21-6	33
- Released Time	21-5	32
- Resignation/Retirement/Removal	21-2.2; .4; .5	29; 30
- Seniority Credit	21-7.3	34
- Stipend		
- Day	21-7	33
- Evening/Summer	21-7.1; .2	34
- Student Personnel Services	21-3.1 (o)	31
- Temporary Chairperson	21-2.2	29
- Work Week	21-4	32
Civil Service Law 204a	76	78
Classroom Observation	18-3(a)	23
Clinical Instructor	Appendix 9	100
College Business	32	43
- Coaches	32-1.4	43
Couches	32-1,4	70
College-Wide Meetings	17	22
Commencement	4-3.2	8
Compact Work Week - Classroom Faculty	5-1.8	10
Compensatory Time - Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	5-2.6	13

	SECTION	PAGE
Contact Hour – Definition - Assignments	3-8 5-1.1; .2	6 8
Coordinator – Academic Programs -Compensation for Additional Coverage	5-1.12 5-1.12	11 11
Death Benefit	40	48
Definitions	3	5
Dental Plan	38	47
Discontinuance of Service	48	52
Dismissal of Tenured Faculty	53	61
Distance Learning - Class Size - Course Assignment Methods - Course Development - Definition - Evaluation - Office Hours - On-line Courses - Ownership of Course Materials - Privacy and Surveillance - Support	9 9-5 9-7 9-3 9-1 9-6 9-8 9-1.1 9-2 9-9	16 17 17 16 17 18 16 16 16
Dues Deduction	1-9; Appendix 3	4; 93
Duration of Contract	78	79
Early A.M. Classes/Assignments	8	15
Early Retirement Incentive	46	50
Election of Committees	69	77
Equal Employment Policy	13	20

	SECTION	PAGE
Evaluation of Evening Faculty - Compensation	5-1.11	11
Evaluation of Professional Competence - All Faculty	18 18-4	22 23
- Classroom Faculty - Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	18-3.2 18-3.3	23 23
Faculty – Definition	3-2	5
Faculty Development	65	75
Faculty Files - Pre-Employment Personnel File	15 15-2	20 20
Grievance – Definition	3-6	6
- Form - Procedure	Appendix 4 19	94 25
Health Insurance - Contributions to Health Insurance Costs	36 36-1	44 44
- Payments While on Leave of Absence - Retiring Employees	30-2 36-1.1	42 44
Holidays - Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	33 33-3	43 43
Independent Study	5-1.13	11
Instructional Faculty – Definition	3-2	5
Jury Duty	35	44
Lag Payroll	23-4	36
Leave of Absence - Summer for Non-Classroom/ Professional Faculty	4-2.2	7
Legality Clause	75	78
Life and Disability Insurance	39	48
LINCC Lecturer	Appendix 10	103

	SECTION	PAGE
LINCC Advisory Committee	64	75
LINCC Lecturer & LINCC Coordinator	7	15
Work Year/Work Week/Work Day Longevity	23-5	37
Management Rights	70	77
Meetings – College-Wide - Adjunct Faculty	17 21-3.1 r(5)	22 31
Mileage Allowance	42	48
Military Leave	30-3	42
NCC Federation of Teachers	1	3
New Employees	74	78
No Strike Provision	71	77
Off Campus Courses	5-1.7; 5-1.7.1	10
Office Hours - Classroom Faculty	5-1.5	9
Optical Plan	37	47
Outside Activities and Part-Time Employment	11	19
Overtime Compensation - Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	5-2.6	13
Parental Leave	31	42
- Reduced Work Load for Child Care	31-4	42
Personal Leave/Classroom Faculty	29	41
Personnel and Budget Committees	63	73
- Composition of Committees - Duties	63-1 63-2; 63-5	73 74; 75
- Duties	03-2, 03-3	74, 73
Policies & Procedures for Assignment And Evaluation of Faculty	Appendix 5	95
Preamble		3
Printing of Agreements	73	78

	SECTION	PAGE
Professional Appointment – Definition	3-10	6
Professional Development Plan	18-2	22
Professional Faculty – Definition	3-2	5
- Qualifications for Appointment and Promotion	60	71
Professional Faculty Unit	66	76
- Advisory Committee	66-1	76
Professional and Military Leaves	30	42
Progressive Disciplinary Process	52	58
- Definition of the Process	52-3	59
- Process	52-2	59
Promotion and Tenure Committee	62	71
- Composition of Committee	62-2	72
- Duties	62-1	71
Promotion Policy		
- Instructional Faculty	57	67
- Professional Faculty	59	68
- Temporary Appointment	54-3	65
Promotion Allocations	58	68
Qualifications for Appointment/Promotion - Professional Faculty	60	71
Qualifications for Appointment, Promotion & Reclassification - Technologist	61	71
Reappointment and Non-Reappointment	51	57
Reclassification of a Unit Member	1-2	3
Reduced Work Load	4-3.3	8
Released Time		
- Faculty	1-4	3
- NCCFT	1-6	3

	SECTION	PAGE
Retirement Plans	45	50
- Request for UP 211	45-3	50
Sabbatical Leave	28 28-4	40 40
- Eligibility	20-4	40
Sabbatical Leave Committee	67	76
- Composition of Committee	67-2	76
- Duties	67-1	76
Salary		
- Faculty with Academic Rank	Appendix 1	80
- Faculty on P Grades	Appendix 1	84
- Faculty on T Grades	Appendix 1	88
Semester – Definition	3-4	6
- Eligibility for Tenure	55-3	65
Englosity for Tenure	33-0	03
Seniority – Definition	3-9	6
- Course Assignments	5-1.6	9
Sick Leave	24	37
- Computation for Classroom Faculty	Appendix 2	92
Computation for Classicom Lacutty	Appendix 2	72
Special Retirement Incentive	47	51
Chalant Franka Data	12	10
Student-Faculty Ratio	12	19
Substitutes		
- Classroom Faculty	24-3	37
- Non-Classroom Faculty	24-5	37
Supplemental Sick Leave	25	38
Supplemental Sick Leave	23	30
Table of Organization	72	78
Tax Deferred Annuities	1-10	4
Teaching Schedules	5-1.8	10
Technical Assistant(s) Conversion	Appendix 6	96
Technologist – Definition	3-2	5
- Qualifications for Appointment	61-2; 61-4	71
Temporary Appointments	54	65
Tenure Policy	55	65

	SECTION	PAGE
Termination for Financial Reasons	49	52
Termination Pay	44	49
- Classroom Faculty	44-1	49
- Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	44-2	49
Union – Definition	3-1	5
- Meetings	1-7	4
Vacations - Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	34	44
- Accrual	34-2	44
Verification of Illness	27	38
VOTE/COPE Payroll Deduction	77	79
- Authorization Form	Appendix 7	98
Wage Increase	23	35
- Increments	23-2	36
Weekend College	10	18
Work Day	6	13
- Classroom Faculty	6-1	13
- Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	5-2	12
- Options	5-2.5	12
Work Week	5	8
- Classroom Faculty	5-1	8
- Regular Contact Hours	5-1.1	8
- 12 Contact Hour Option	5-1.2	8
- Compact Work Week	5-1.8	10
- Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	5-2	12
- 4 Day Schedule	5-2.5	12
- All Purpose Leave	5-2.2	12
- Emergency Days	5-2.3	12
- Options	5-2.5	12
- Schedule Variations	5-2.5	12
Work Year	4	6
- All Faculty	4-3	7
- 50% to 60% Workload Option	4-3.3	8
- Classroom Faculty - Student Advisement	4-1 4-1.4	6
		6 7
- Scheduling of Classes	4-1.5 4-2	7
- Non-Classroom/Prof Faculty	4-2	/
Year-End Evaluation Report	18-3(b)	23

NOTES

NOTES

NOTES



M. Debra DeSanto, President Frank Frisenda, Vice President James Hoyt, Vice President Donna Hope, Secretary Caroline Falconetti, Treasurer